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THE AVENUE® EAST COBB, Atlanta, GA – Cousins unveiled the Avenue retail concept – open-air, pedestrian-friendly centers with restaurants and

traditionally mall-based retailers – with the opening of this project in 1999.
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At Cousins Properties, we take a different approach to the

real estate business.

Succeeding through the ups and downs of more than 40 years in the

turbulent real estate industry has given Cousins an uncommon view

on developing our own properties, managing risk, building

relationships and understanding that success often requires

exploring new opportunities. At the core of our corporate culture is

our unwavering commitment to enhancing shareholder value in

everything we do. We try to make this commitment the focus of

every business decision.

It is this approach that has helped us achieve a quality not often found

in the real estate business – prosperity with longevity.
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*Geometric mean return on an annualized basis with reinvestment of dividends.
Source: CRSP, Center for Research in Security Prices. Graduate School of Business, The University
of Chicago, 2003. Used with permission. All rights reserved. www.crsp.uchicago.edu. 
NAREIT Equity Index returns provided by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts.

CUZ – Cousins Properties, NAREIT – National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, S&P 500 –
Standard & Poor’s index, BAC – Bank of America, KO – The Coca-Cola Company, GE – General Electric 

CUZ
23.9%

25-Year Total Return*
(January 1978 – December 2002)

NAREIT
13.4%

S&P 500
9.3%

BAC
18.0%

KO
17.7%

GE
17.1%

0%



2

Cousins is a REIT in form and substance. But in our heart and soul, we

are a development company. For four decades, prudent development has

allowed us to create exceptional value for our shareholders.

Development is a difficult process and is susceptible to market cycles in

all real estate categories. Our objective is to manage our risk and take

advantage of good development opportunities whenever and wherever

they arise. Sometimes one asset class, like retail, is strong while another,

such as office, is weak. As a diversified developer, we have the flexibility

to pursue the stronger market segments. At times like these, when we

face a generally weak economic environment, good development

opportunities are few and far between. Our goal during these times is

to only pursue projects that make sense from a long-term value creation

standpoint.We know from experience the cycle will turn and we believe

that good opportunities will be available to us in the future.

We refuse to settle solely for appreciation.

AN UNCOMMON VIEW ON DEVELOPMENT
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GATEWAY VILLAGE, Charlotte, NC – Built in 2000 at the gateway to Uptown Charlotte, this mixed-use project brings together more than 

1 million square feet of office space with retail, restaurants and five nearby residential projects.
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101 SECOND STREET, San Francisco, CA – This landmark 25-story, 387,000-square-foot tower opened in 1999, completing the Financial

District’s first new speculative office development in nearly a decade.
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Cousins is not a large company, not even a large real estate company.

Over the years, we have built a portfolio of high-quality real estate assets

that provide stability for our Company and its shareholders. Our goal is

not to grow for growth’s sake or to have the largest portfolio of assets in

the REIT world, but rather to maximize shareholder value.Toward this 

end, we will periodically harvest the value we have created in certain

stabilized assets, extracting the capital by sales or financing transactions,

and re-use the capital to fund new projects. As a result, we seldom have

to raise new equity, subjecting ourselves to the whims of the capital

markets, and we maximize the amount of value creation and growth for

our existing shareholders.

We don’t like to gamble with the future.

AN UNCOMMON VIEW ON PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT



A number of commentators have expressed surprise at the level of

occupancy in our portfolios in these difficult economic times.We would

assert this is due to a strict adherence to one of our key core principles

– Quality. We seek quality in project location, construction and

development, leasing, tenancy, property management and operations,

asset management and, perhaps most importantly, in our people. Our

clients care about quality. It often sets us apart from our competitors.

This principle has been a part of the Cousins culture for a long time and

is responsible for well-satisfied clients and excellent client retention.

We think quality speaks for itself.
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AN UNCOMMON VIEW ON QUALITY
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THE AVENUE® PEACHTREE CITY, Atlanta, GA – Completed in 2001, the second Atlanta-area Avenue project took the successful concept to the

city’s south side and quickly became a destination for the local community.
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EMORY CRAWFORD LONG MEDICAL OFFICE TOWER, Atlanta, GA – The 358,000-square-foot tower was completed in 2002 as part of

Cousins’ $270 million redevelopment of the Emory Crawford Long Medical Campus.



Cousins Properties has always worked hard to maintain exceptional

relationships with our clients and partners. As a result, these relationships

have consistently helped us find good value creation opportunities and

contributed to our success in leasing and land acquisition. We always

strive for a win-win situation with our clients and partners. They are

always our best references and often our best source of new business

opportunities.We are pleased to count among our partners and tenants

such outstanding companies as IBM, Bank of America, Prudential,

TIAA-CREF, Temple-Inland, BellSouth, General Electric and AGL

Resources, to name just a few.

We build partnerships, not just buildings.

AN UNCOMMON VIEW ON RELATIONSHIPS
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My first year as CEO of Cousins was full of surprises.

Office vacancy rates increased in almost every major

market in the country. In many cases, vacancy rates are

now over 20%. In spite of this, asset prices remained

high and distressed sales and foreclosures were few and

far between. Usually, a well-capitalized REIT like

Cousins will see good buying opportunities in down

markets, but it was not so this year.The properties that

did sell, both office and retail, looked very pricey to me.

All in all a very unusual year for real estate.

In spite of these challenges, Cousins had a pretty good

year in 2002.While new development starts were limited

by market conditions, our leasing team performed

extremely well.We ended the year with FFO growth of

10% in 2002 over 2001. In addition, our property

portfolios remain well leased with office properties at

94% and retail properties at 96% at year-end.

Contributing to our increase in income in 2002 were

the openings of the 55 Second Street property in San

Francisco and the Emory Crawford Long Medical

Office Tower in Midtown Atlanta.We did not start any

new office development in 2002, and I do not expect

much new office development in 2003.There may be

the occasional special situation, perhaps a new building

for a single tenant with good credit, but little else is

expected. Most of our largest office markets have

significant vacancy rates and we expect it will take quite

a while for this overhang to work itself off.

On the retail side of the business, the picture is a little

brighter. We were able to commence development of

two new projects,The Avenue West Cobb, in northwest

Atlanta, as well as The Shops of Lake Tuscaloosa, a

grocery-anchored center in Tuscaloosa, Alabama. In

general, our retail properties are performing well and we

believe our tenants are healthy, as evidenced by the 96%

leased level at year-end. I am hopeful we will be able to

start some additional retail developments in 2003.

The land division also performed well in 2002.We sold

a total of 455 residential lots, counting our joint venture

lots, as compared to approximately 354 lots in 2001.

The residential business has remained strong in part due

to the continuing low level of mortgage interest rates.

While we anticipate some softening in the residential

market in 2003, we expect the residential lot

development business to be quite good over the next

several years. As we reported earlier, we are expanding

our residential and land activity outside of Atlanta

through a new venture with Temple-Inland, our current

partner in the Temco venture in Paulding County. Both

Temple-Inland and your Company believe this business

has a bright future.

Looking ahead to 2003, we do not see much in terms

of economic recovery and we expect the real estate

industry will most likely lag the general economy’s

rebound when it occurs.This particularly applies to the

office markets. 2003 has already brought some tenant

credit issues for Cousins, including the bankruptcy

filing of Regus, a tenant in two of our buildings, and

the financial difficulties of Cable & Wireless, which

resulted in a fee of $20 million to terminate their lease

in one of our buildings in San Francisco. Although

there is some short-term gain in income and FFO from

lease termination fees, both of these situations will most

likely have a negative impact on our earnings and FFO

over the longer term. Given the state of the economy,

we feel further tenant credit issues could come up in

the months ahead.

Those of you who have followed Cousins for a while

know one of our core principles is that we periodically

harvest the value created in certain stabilized assets,

particularly when the market is offering a good price for

the assets.We believe there are a number of properties in

our portfolio that might be ripe for “harvesting.”This is

in effect a very healthy activity for the Company. It

Dear Shareholders and Partners,

“In my 44 years as a developer, I have experienced many boom 

and bust real estate cycles. Each has presented a unique set of obstacles 

and opportunities. Fortunately, Cousins Properties has the capital structure 

and management team to once again ride out the down cycle and 

take advantage of the rebound when it comes.”

– Tom Cousins

Chairman of the Board
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provides us with additional capital that can be reinvested

in new projects in the future, avoiding the need to go

to the capital markets. It also helps manage the size of the

Company, thereby enhancing returns for existing

shareholders. Although this is a net plus for the

Company over the longer term, on a short-term basis it

can dilute earnings and FFO per share.This, along with

termination fees and credit issues, creates unavoidable

uncertainty in forecasts for earnings and FFO.

Despite the cautious report on our expectations for

2003, as I think about my first year as CEO of Cousins

and assess our long-term prospects, I am still optimistic.

We have handled the economic downturn well thus

far and we are in very good shape both in terms of

portfolio occupancy and financial condition. Eventually,

the economy will recover, with tenant credit and

occupancy stabilizing and vacancy being absorbed by

new growth. Although hard to believe, as in past

recessions, new development opportunities will arise

and, when they do, your Company will be ready. If you

examine Cousins’ history and, in particular, its

development activity coming out of past recessions, you

might even begin to share my optimism. In the past, as

we have come out of recessions, the Company had little

activity. But as the recovery began to take hold, new

business and growth opportunities returned and then

accelerated as the economy rebounded. I expect that

once again opportunities will present themselves as the

economy bounces back.Your Company is in excellent

financial condition and we have an outstanding team in

place. When the cycle turns, we will be ready to take

advantage of these opportunities and create outstanding

value for our shareholders. In the meantime, we will

work hard to keep our properties leased and maximize

the value of the development projects that are primarily

available in our retail and residential sectors.

In closing, I want to step back and look at the bigger

picture from an investment perspective. It is indeed a

very interesting market environment. In the late 90’s,

we were told by a number of investors and analysts that

real estate was passé and could not match the

performance of the other sectors.At that time we said,

fine, let’s compare Cousins to more traditional

companies in other industries. In our last three annual

reports, we showed our performance against a portfolio

of very fine companies, as well as the S&P 500 index,

and our performance has held up very well. We

have now experienced a recession with the S&P 500

and many companies outside of the real estate sector

exhibiting very poor returns.We show in this report a

number of graphs depicting our returns over various

holding periods against the same set of non-real estate

companies and the S&P 500 index. Not only did we

match their performance in this downturn but also, in

almost all cases, we beat their performance, as well as the

performance of the S&P 500 and NAREIT indexes. It

shows your Company performs well on a comparative

basis in both good times and bad.

Cousins combines a very strong portfolio of operating

assets with the ability to offer growth through value

creation and development when those opportunities are

available. Throughout our history as a public company,

our objective has been to achieve exceptional investment

results for our shareholders while maintaining good

defensive characteristics in the downturns. It is my goal

to maintain this performance, and I believe we are well

positioned to do so.

We thank you for your continuing support.

Thomas D. Bell, Jr.

President and Chief Executive Officer

Tom Cousins Tom Bell
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Q:

Do you believe the recent increased interest in
REIT stocks and real estate in general is a short-
term phenomenon caused by poor returns in the
stock market, or do you think it is a lasting trend in
investing?

The boom and bust of recent years has surely taught

investors an important lesson: diversification is good.

Real estate, measured for example by the NAREIT

index, has performed pretty well in the downturn.

Many more investors now see a place for real estate in

a well-balanced investment portfolio and REITs offer

an easy, liquid way to invest in real estate.There also

seems to be a general belief that overall equity returns

in the broader markets will not be all that good over

the next few years. On a comparative basis, real estate

returns look quite attractive. I believe the benefits of

diversification and good relative returns will lead

more and more long-term investors to include REIT

stocks in their portfolios.

Q:

One of Cousins’ core principles is that it creates
value through the development of real estate. Many
feel development is riskier than merely owning real
estate. Why should someone buy Cousins’ stock
instead of a REIT that is not involved in
development during these difficult times?

First, there are many fine REITs, sometimes referred

to as “property companies,” that do not do any

significant development. They certainly have a place

in a well-balanced portfolio. Cousins offers a different

investment profile. Similar to a “property company,”

we have a high quality real estate portfolio that

provides stability and strength to our Company and

investors. But we have also consistently delivered

additional growth and value creation through

development.You cannot develop without risk, but a

good developer can and does manage and minimize

that risk. Over the 44 years we have been in business,

development has been a healthy contributor to our

performance, helping to provide superior returns to

our shareholders. The shareholder return charts

included elsewhere in this report make this clear. So, I

think with Cousins you get the best of both worlds –

a portfolio of high-quality well-leased assets that

provides safety during hard times and the higher value

creation and growth available from development

during good times.

Q:

Should investors shy away from Cousins during a
weak economic environment when real estate
fundamentals are declining and few development
opportunities are available?

In a weak market environment, stock performance

should be examined on a relative basis.While it is true

we do not have many development opportunities at

this time, we have done quite well relative to most

alternative investments.The shareholder return charts

included elsewhere in this report make this pretty

clear.The question also implies one might try to avoid

or sell a stock during a period of weakness and buy a

stock back before a period of strength. Investment

strategists refer to this as market timing. I think it is

very difficult to time markets. Like most CEOs, I

prefer long-term investors who understand our

business and believe in our strategy.At times like these,

I believe that Cousins offers good downside

protection, good current returns and the opportunity

to experience additional growth as the economy

recovers. Personally, it is hard for me to understand

why every investor would not want to buy and hold

Cousins’ stock.

Q:

The commercial office markets are suffering with
high vacancy rates and low rents. When will they
recover?

I don’t expect a recovery any time soon. As of early

2003, our primary office markets are continuing to

A VIEW FROM TOM BELL
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“I believe that Cousins offers good downside

protection, good current returns and the

opportunity to experience additional growth 

as the economy recovers.”

experience rising vacancies and softening rents.

Absent some unexpected external shocks, such as

terrorist incidents or unexpected war-related

problems, I would expect the markets to begin

stabilizing late this year. However, the overhang of

unoccupied office space is very high – in the 20%-

plus range in several of our markets – and it will take

quite a while to work back to more normal vacancy

levels. I do not think we will see much development

activity in this period. We have been here before. In

the early 1990’s, we also did very little office

development, but when the recovery took hold, our

growth returned and then accelerated quite nicely.

Q:

What are the prospects for retail activity in the next
couple of years?

We feel pretty good about our retail business.We have

a strong team and a good concept in the Avenue®.

Our portfolio is generally quite stable with high

occupancy and few tenant credit issues. Retailers

continue to commit to our new projects as evidenced

by our leasing successes at The Avenue West Cobb –

a project we started last fall. Having said that, the

economy is still soft and we worry about the

consumer’s ability to hold up. Our sense is that our

retail markets are generally healthier than our office

markets, and we expect to see additional retail

development opportunities in the months ahead.

Q:

What effect do you believe the Bush
Administration’s proposed tax reform would have
on Cousins Properties if it were approved in its
present form?

At this time, it is not clear whether any change will

be made to the taxation of dividends, which is the

portion of the President’s proposal that would most

impact REITs. If the President is successful and

regular corporate dividends are excluded from

taxation, it appears REIT dividends would continue

to be taxed. Some commentators believe this would

be a significant negative for REIT stocks, perhaps

even decreasing their values. I do not think so.There

may be some negative impact, but I do not believe it

is likely to be significant. REITs will still offer

attractive returns and valuable diversification

characteristics. In addition, many REIT investors do

not pay tax because they invest in REITs through

retirement funds and accounts. Their REIT income

will still be 100% tax-free.

Q:

Although you have held top management roles
with companies in other industries, you do not
come from a real estate background. What
strengths do you believe you contribute as the
CEO of Cousins Properties?

In many ways, the real estate business is a relationship-

driven business. Cousins Properties has been very

successful in cultivating high-level relationships with

senior executives of many of the country’s most

reputable companies, like IBM, Bank of America and

others, largely because of Tom Cousins’ relationships

with their senior management. My goal is to continue

Cousins’ tradition of building business-based

relationships of trust and integrity for our Company.

I have spent many years entrenched in the upper

circles of corporate decision-makers, which should

help us achieve this goal. I also think I bring a

different perspective to Cousins as both a newcomer

to the industry and a former user of space. My history

is mostly on the client side of real estate and it gives

me a valuable connection with and an understanding

of many of the issues that face our clients. Finally, I

would point out that Cousins is blessed with a great

senior management team with vast real estate

experience. My most important role is asset allocation

and strategy development. I feel very comfortable

with those responsibilities.
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AN OVERVIEW OF COUSINS PROPERTIES

Office Division

Cousins’ history of office building development dates back

to the early 1960s, when the Company developed its first

non-residential property – the Piedmont-Cain Building in

downtown Atlanta. Since then, Cousins has developed more

than 20 million square feet of office space, including landmarks

like Bank of America Plaza and Wildwood Office Park.

Currently, Cousins has ownership interests in 14.2 million

square feet of office space and leases and manages almost six

million square feet for third-party clients.

Retail Division

From neighborhood centers to regional malls, retail

development has long been an important part of Cousins.

The Company’s first regional mall development opened in

1971. After its 1992 acquisition of retail developer New

Market Development Company, Cousins concentrated on

neighborhood and power center development, opening new

projects in Georgia, Florida, Virginia and Southern California.

In 1999, Cousins unveiled the Avenue concept, a pedestrian-

friendly specialty center that brought traditional mall retailers

into an open-air setting.

Land Division

From its earliest days, Cousins has understood the value of

land, working to control large strategic tracts for commercial

or residential development. Over its 44-year history, Cousins

has developed more than 30 single-family subdivisions,

ranging from 100 to 2,000 acres, along with more than 3,000

multifamily units. Following in Cousins’ rich tradition of

neighborhood development, the Land Division is responsible

for creating the infrastructure to support lot sales to

independent builders.
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44 Properties

1■4,249,000 sf

(includes wholly owned, joint-venture-owned and under-construction properties) 

94% Leased

(excludes projects under construction and One Ninety One
Peachtree Tower, of which Cousins owns 9.8 percent)

4% Lease Rollover

(2003, includes wholly owned and Cousins’ share of joint-venture properties)

2002 Office Division Highlights

Completed and opened 55 Second Street in San

Francisco and Emory Crawford Long Medical

Office Tower in Atlanta. The projects totaled

more than 737,000 square feet and represent

$147.8 million (includes Cousins’ share of joint

venture investment) in new office development.

Signed AGL Resources to 2002’s largest new

office lease in Atlanta – a 227,000-square-foot

lease at Ten Peachtree Place in Atlanta.

Renewed major leases totaling more than

560,000 square feet with Coca-Cola Enterprises,

Georgia Lottery Corp., Hunton & Williams, and

Robinson, Bradshaw & Hinson.

2002 Retail Division Highlights

Commenced construction on The Avenue West

Cobb, a 206,000-square-foot specialty center in

suburban Atlanta.This $38 million project is the

fourth Avenue project for Cousins and its third in

Metro-Atlanta.

Signed Publix to a 44,000-square-foot lease to

anchor The Shops of Lake Tuscaloosa, a 70,000-

square-foot neighborhood center expected to

open in December 2003 and Cousins’ first retail

project in Alabama.

Successfully leased The Avenue Peachtree City to

nearly 100 percent.

2002 Land Division Highlights

Sold a record 455 lots, including 291 at

Bentwater, a 1,045-acre community in Paulding

County, northwest of Atlanta. In addition, the

Division sold land tracts worth approximately

$3 million.

Launched the CL Realty joint venture with

Temple-Inland to develop residential subdivisions

throughout the Southeast and Texas.

Began predevelopment or development activities

on residential communities containing more

than 2,000 single-family lots.

1■3 Properties

3,309,000 sf

(includes wholly owned, joint-venture-owned and under-construction properties)

96% Leased

1■% Lease Rollover

(2003, includes wholly owned and Cousins’ share of joint-venture properties)

9,850 Acres of Controlled Land

(through ownership or options; includes land 
controlled by joint ventures)

6 Ongoing Projects

1■,697 Lots Sold

(on land currently owned by Cousins)

1■,853 Lots to Be Developed

(in existing projects)
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CUZ – Cousins Properties, NAREIT – National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, 
S&P 500 – Standard & Poor’s index, BAC – Bank of America, KO – The Coca-Cola Company, 
GE – General Electric 

*Geometric mean return on an annualized basis with reinvestment of dividends.
Source: CRSP, Center for Research in Security Prices. Graduate School of Business,
The University of Chicago, 2003. Used with permission. All rights reserved.
www.crsp.uchicago.edu. 
NAREIT Equity Index returns provided by the National Association of Real Estate
Investment Trusts.
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16.4%

Take virtually any traditional holding

period in the past 20 years, and you’ll

find that Cousins has provided a solid

and impressive return to shareholders

relative to its peers and some of the

world’s most respected companies.

A VIEW OF OUR RETURNS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Funds From Operations (FFO) Per Share $ 2.29 $ 2.08 $ 1.92 $ 1.66 $ 1.55
% increase in FFO from prior year 10% 8% 16% 7% 18%
five-year compound annual growth rate 12%

Dividends Paid Per Share $ 1.48 $ 1.39 $ 1.24 $ 1.12 $ .99
payout ratio (dividends as a percent of FFO) 64% 66% 63% 66% 63%
five-year compound annual growth rate 12%

Total Market Capitalization at Year-End $ 2,040 $ 1,970 $ 2,046 $ 1,594 $ 1,449
(including share of joint venture debt)
($ in millions)

Debt to Total Market Capitalization at Year-End 41% 39% 33% 32% 29%
(including share of joint venture debt)

Stock Price at Year-End $24.7000 $ 24.3600 $ 27.9375 $22.6250 $ 21.5000
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Cousins Properties Incorporated and Consolidated Entities

FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,

($ in thousands, except per share amounts) 2002 2001 2000

Income from continuing operations before gain on sale 
of investment properties $ 43,718 $ 47,098 $ 50,648

Income from discontinued operations 227 221 24
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle – – (566)
Depreciation and amortization(1) 72,936 61,010 47,295
Amortization of deferred financing costs and

depreciation of furniture, fixtures and equipment(1) (2,131) (1,537) (1,030)
Elimination of the recognition of rental revenues on

a straight-line basis(1) (2,145) (3,164) (1,629)
Adjustment to reflect stock appreciation right

expense on a cash basis (318) (1,251) (68)
Gain on sale of undepreciated investment properties 2,143 2,011 564
Consolidated Funds From Operations $ 114,430 $ 104,388 $ 95,238
Weighted Average Shares 49,252 49,205 48,632
Consolidated Funds From Operations Per Share – Basic $ 2.32 $ 2.12 $ 1.96
Diluted Weighted Average Shares 49,937 50,280 49,731
Consolidated Funds From Operations Per Share – Diluted $ 2.29 $ 2.08 $ 1.92

(1) Includes share of joint ventures.

The table below shows Funds From Operations (“FFO”)
for Cousins Properties Incorporated and Consolidated
Entities and its share of unconsolidated joint ventures. On
a consolidated basis, FFO includes the Company’s FFO and
the Company’s share of FFO of its unconsolidated joint
ventures, but excludes the Company’s share of distributions
from such ventures. The Company calculates its FFO using
the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts
(“NAREIT”) definition of FFO adjusted to (i) eliminate
the recognition of rental revenues on a straight-line basis and
(ii) reflect stock appreciation right expense on a cash basis.

Management believes the Company’s FFO is not directly
comparable to other REITs which own a portfolio of
mature income-producing properties because the
Company develops projects through a development and
lease-up phase before they reach their targeted cash flow
returns. Furthermore, the Company eliminates in consoli-
dation fee income for developing and leasing projects
owned by consolidated entities, while capitalizing related
internal costs. In addition, unlike many REITs, the
Company has considerable land holdings which provide a
strong base for future FFO growth as land is developed or
sold in future years. Property taxes on the land, which
are expensed currently, reduce current FFO.

As indicated above, the Company does not include
straight-lined rents in its FFO, as it could under the
NAREIT definition of FFO. Furthermore, most of the
Company’s leases are also escalated periodically based on
the Consumer Price Index which, unlike fixed escalations,
do not require rent to be straight-lined; under NAREIT’s
definition straight-lining of rents produces higher FFO in
the early years of a lease and lower FFO in the later years
of a lease.

FFO is used by industry analysts as a supplemental measure
of an equity REIT’s performance. FFO should not be con-
sidered an alternative to net income or other measurements
under accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States as an indicator of operating performance, or to
cash flows from operating, investing, or financing activities as
a measure of liquidity.

On October 2, 2000, a 3-for-2 stock split effected in the
form of a 50% stock dividend was awarded to stockholders
of record on September 15, 2000. All prior period shares
outstanding and per share amounts have been restated for
the effect of the stock dividend.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

($ in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 2002 2001

Assets
Properties:

Operating properties, net of accumulated depreciation of
$155,100 in 2002 and $105,795 in 2001 $ 757,329 $ 764,810

Operating property held for sale, net of accumulated depreciation
of $244 in 2001 – 6,309

Land held for investment or future development 16,632 15,294
Projects under construction 171,135 140,833
Residential lots under development 20,100 12,520

Total Properties 965,196 939,766
Cash and Cash Equivalents, at cost, which approximates market 9,471 10,556
Notes and Other Receivables 50,607 44,533
Investment in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures 185,516 185,397
Other Assets, including goodwill of $15,612 in 2002 and 2001 37,287 36,377

Total Assets $1,248,077 $ 1,216,629

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Investment
Notes Payable $ 669,792 $ 585,275
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 35,445 31,762
Deposits and Deferred Income 3,429 2,422

Total Liabilities 708,666 619,459
Deferred Gain 103,568 107,676
Minority Interests 26,959 26,821
Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Note 4)
Stockholders’ Investment:

Common stock, $1 par value; authorized 150,000,000 shares,
issued 50,843,835 in 2002 and 50,106,110 in 2001 50,844 50,106

Additional paid-in capital 288,172 276,268
Treasury stock at cost, 2,457,482 shares in 2002 and 681,000 shares in 2001 (59,356) (17,465)
Unearned compensation (2,647) (3,580)
Cumulative undistributed net income 131,871 157,344

Total Stockholders’ Investment 408,884 462,673
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Investment $1,248,077 $ 1,216,629

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



20
Cousins Properties Incorporated and Consolidated Entities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31,

($ in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 2002 2001 2000

Revenues:
Rental property revenues $ 168,046 $ 144,754 $ 113,825
Development income 4,625 6,179 4,251
Management fees 9,313 7,966 4,841
Leasing and other fees 4,297 5,344 1,608
Residential lot and outparcel sales 9,126 6,682 13,951
Interest and other 4,393 6,061 5,995

199,800 176,986 144,471
Income From Unconsolidated Joint Ventures 26,670 22,897 19,452
Costs and Expenses:

Rental property operating expenses 49,015 43,826 33,379
General and administrative expenses 27,670 27,010 18,452
Depreciation and amortization 54,248 44,453 32,742
Stock appreciation right expense (credit) 29 (276) 468
Residential lot and outparcel cost of sales 7,309 5,910 11,684
Interest expense 37,423 27,610 13,596
Property taxes on undeveloped land 675 619 40
Other 4,857 4,324 4,086

181,226 153,476 114,447
Income From Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes 45,244 46,407 49,476
Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes From Operations 1,526 (691) (1,145)
Income From Continuing Operations Before

Gain on Sale of Investment Properties 43,718 47,098 50,621
Gain on Sale of Investment Properties, Net of

Applicable Income Tax Provision 6,254 23,496 11,937
Income From Continuing Operations 49,972 70,594 62,558
Discontinued Operations, Net of Applicable Income Tax Provision:

Income from discontinued operations 227 221 51
Gain on sale of investment property 1,174 – –

1,401 221 51
Extraordinary Loss (3,501) – –
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle – – (566)
Net Income $ 47,872 $ 70,815 $ 62,043
Basic Net Income per Share:

Income from continuing operations $ 1.01 $ 1.43 $ 1.29
Discontinued operations .03 .01 –
Extraordinary loss (.07) – –
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle – – (0.01)
Basic net income per share $ .97 $ 1.44 $ 1.28

Diluted Net Income per Share:
Income from continuing operations $ 1.00 $ 1.40 $ 1.26
Discontinued operations .03 .01 –
Extraordinary loss (.07) – –
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle – – (0.01)
Diluted net income per share $ .96 $ 1.41 $ 1.25

Cash Dividends Declared per Share $ 1.48 $ 1.39 $ 1.24
Weighted Average Shares 49,252 49,205 48,632
Diluted Weighted Average Shares 49,937 50,280 49,731

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ INVESTMENT

Additional Cumulative
Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 Common Paid-In Treasury Unearned Undistributed
($ in thousands) Stock Capital Stock Compensation Net Income Total

Balance, December 31, 1999 $ 48,415 $ 240,901 $ (4,990) $ – $ 153,396 $ 437,722
Net income, 2000 – – – – 62,043 62,043
Common stock issued pursuant to:

Exercise of options and
director stock plan 195 727 – – – 922

Dividend reinvestment plan 489 11,436 – – – 11,925
Stock grant 265 6,595 – (4,690) – 2,170

Dividends declared – – – – (60,315) (60,315)

Balance, December 31, 2000 49,364 259,659 (4,990) (4,690) 155,124 454,467

Net income, 2001 – – – – 70,815 70,815
Common stock issued pursuant to:

Exercise of options and
director stock plan 162 3,339 – – – 3,501

Dividend reinvestment plan 578 13,299 – – – 13,877
Stock grant and related

amortization, net of forfeitures 2 (29) – 1,110 – 1,083
Dividends declared – – – – (68,595) (68,595)
Purchase of treasury stock – – (12,475) – – (12,475)

Balance, December 31, 2001 50,106 276,268 (17,465) (3,580) 157,344 462,673
Net income, 2002 – – – – 47,872 47,872
Common stock issued pursuant to:

Exercise of options and
director stock plan 750 12,234 – – – 12,984

Stock grant and related 
amortization, net of forfeitures (12) (330) – 933 – 591

Dividends declared – – – – (73,345) (73,345)
Purchase of treasury stock – – (41,891) – – (41,891)

Balance, December 31, 2002 $ 50,844 $288,172 $ (59,356) $ (2,647) $ 131,871 $408,884

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

($ in thousands) 2002 2001 2000

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Income from continuing operations before gain on 

sale of investment properties $ 43,718 $ 47,098 $ 50,621
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations before gain on 

sale of investment properties to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization, net of minority interest’s share 54,248 44,357 31,480
Amortization of unearned compensation 591 1,019 –
Stock appreciation right expense (credit) 29 (276) 468
Cash charges to expense accrual for stock appreciation rights (347) (975) (536)
Effect of recognizing rental revenues on a straight-line basis (2,137) (2,380) (2,111)
Residential lot and outparcel cost of sales 5,715 4,445 10,576
Changes in other operating assets and liabilities:
Change in other receivables (2,634) 2,042 (2,763)
Change in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,562 (5,159) 2,692

Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 102,745 90,171 90,427
Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations 366 420 93
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Gain on sale of investment properties, net of applicable income tax provision 7,428 23,496 11,937
Adjustments to reconcile gain on sale of investment properties to net cash

provided by sales activities:
Cost of sales 6,118 36,253 17,510
Deferred income recognized (4,104) (4,126) (4,112)
Non-cash gain on disposition of leasehold interests – (236) –

Property acquisition and development expenditures (87,988) (140,346) (215,958)
Distributions in excess of income from unconsolidated joint ventures 9,366 22,081 13,086
Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures, including interest 

capitalized to equity investments (9,485) (44,030) (36,820)
Investment in notes receivable (1,308) (1,308) (1,214)
Collection of notes receivable 5 2,916 2,742
Change in other assets, net (2,992) (9,839) (4,998)
Net cash paid in acquisition of a business – (2,126) –

Net cash used in investing activities (82,960) (117,265) (217,827)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Repayment of credit facility (246,362) (318,510) (287,711)
Proceeds from credit facility 251,703 298,030 331,356
Common stock sold, net of expenses 12,984 16,414 15,017
Common stock repurchases (41,891) (12,475) –
Dividends paid (73,345) (68,595) (60,315)
Proceeds from other notes payable 152,843 126,500 154,500
Repayment of other notes payable (73,667) (5,830) (25,317)
Extraordinary loss (3,501) – –

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (21,236) 35,534 127,530
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,085) 8,860 223
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 10,556 1,696 1,473
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 9,471 $ 10,556 $ 1,696

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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1. Significant Accounting Policies

Consolidation and Presentation:

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the
accounts of Cousins Properties Incorporated (“Cousins”),
its majority-owned partnerships and wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Cousins Real Estate Corporation (“CREC”)
and its subsidiaries and CREC II Inc. (“CREC II”) and its
subsidiaries. Information regarding CREC and CREC II is
included in Note 2. All of the entities included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements are hereinafter referred
to collectively as the “Company.” The Company’s invest-
ments in its non-majority-owned and/or non-controlled
joint ventures are recorded using the equity method of
accounting. Information regarding the non-majority-
owned and/or non-controlled joint ventures is included in
Note 5.

Income Taxes:

Since 1987, Cousins has elected to be taxed as a real estate
investment trust (“REIT”).As a REIT, Cousins is not sub-
ject to corporate federal income taxes to the extent that
it distributes 100% of its taxable income (excluding the
consolidated taxable income of CREC and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries and CREC II and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries) to stockholders, which is Cousins’ current
intention. The Company computes taxable income on a
basis different from that used for financial reporting purposes
(see Note 7). CREC and its wholly-owned subsidiaries and
CREC II and its wholly-owned subsidiaries each file a
consolidated federal income tax return.

Depreciation and Amortization:

Real estate assets are stated at depreciated cost. Buildings
are depreciated over 30 years. Buildings that were acquired
are depreciated over 15, 25 or 30 years. Furniture, fixtures
and equipment are depreciated over three to five years.
Tenant improvements, leasing costs and leasehold improve-
ments are amortized over the life of the applicable leases or
the estimated useful life of the assets, whichever is shorter.
Deferred expenses are amortized over the period of esti-
mated benefit. The straight-line method is used for all
depreciation and amortization.

Long-Lived Assets:

Long-lived assets include property, goodwill and other
assets which are held and used by an entity. Effective
January 1, 2002, the Company values its long-lived assets in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144. The carrying value of 
long-lived assets is periodically reviewed by management
and impairment losses, if any, are recognized when the
expected undiscounted future operating cash flows derived
from such assets are less than their carrying value.
Management believes no such impairments have occurred
during any of the periods presented. See “Recent Accounting
Pronouncements” for a further discussion of SFAS No.144.

Fee Income and Cost Capitalization:

Development, construction and leasing fees received
from unconsolidated joint ventures and related salaries and
other direct costs incurred by the Company are recognized
as income and expense based on the percentage of the joint
venture which the Company does not own.
Correspondingly, investment in unconsolidated joint
ventures is adjusted for these fees and related costs based on
the percentage of the unconsolidated joint venture which
the Company owns.

Management fees received from unconsolidated joint ven-
tures are recognized as earned. The Company expenses
salaries and other direct costs related to these management
fees.

Development, construction and leasing fees between
consolidated entities are eliminated in consolidation. These
fees totaled $2,784,000, $2,585,000 and $3,048,000 in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Management fees
received from consolidated entities are eliminated in
consolidation, and related salaries and other direct costs are
reflected in rental property operating expenses. Costs relat-
ed to planning, developing, leasing and constructing a prop-
erty (including related general and administrative expenses)
are capitalized to the basis of the property.

Interest, real estate taxes and operating expenses of
properties are also capitalized from the date a project
receives its certificate of occupancy and for one year there-
after based on the percentage of the project available for
occupancy. Interest is capitalized to investments accounted
for by the equity method when the investee has property
under development with a carrying value in excess of the
investee’s borrowings. Deferred leasing and other capital-
ized costs associated with a particular property are classified
with Properties in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
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Stock-Based Employee Compensation:

The Company has several stock-based employee compen-
sation plans which are described fully in Note 6. The
Company has elected to account for its plans under
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” which
requires the recording of compensation expense for some,
but not all, stock-based compensation, rather than the
alternative accounting permitted by SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” No stock-
based employee compensation cost is reflected in net
income for options granted under the plans, as all options
granted had an exercise price equal to the market value of
the underlying common stock on the date of grant. Stock-
based employee compensation cost is reflected in net
income for stock appreciation rights (“SARs”) and
restricted stock grants issued under the plans.

For purposes of the pro forma disclosures required by
SFAS No. 123, the Company has computed the value of
all stock awards and stock options granted during 2002,
2001 and 2000 using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following weighted average assumptions
and results:

2002 2001 2000

Assumptions
Risk-free interest rate 4.51% 4.70% 5.33%
Assumed dividend yield 6.12% 5.97% 4.91%
Assumed lives of option 
awards 8 years 8 years 8 years

Assumed volatility 0.192 0.197 0.202
Results
Weighted average 
fair value of 
options granted $ 2.33 $ 2.62 $ 4.20

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed
for use in estimating the fair value of traded options which
have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In
addition, option valuation models require the input of
highly subjective assumptions. In the Company’s opinion,
because the Company’s stock-based compensation awards
have characteristics significantly different from traded
options and because changes in the subjective assumptions
can materially affect the fair value estimate, the results
obtained from the valuation model do not necessarily pro-
vide a reliable single measure of the value of its stock-based
compensation awards.

If the Company had accounted for its stock-based
compensation awards in 2002, 2001 and 2000 in accor-
dance with SFAS No. 123, pro forma results would have
been as follows ($ in thousands, except per share amounts):

2002 2001 2000

Net income, as reported $ 47,872 $ 70,815 $ 62,043
Add: Stock-based employee
compensation expense 
included in reported net 
income, net of
related tax effects 607 1,055 1,180

Deduct: Total stock-based 
employee compensation
expense determined
under fair-value-based 
method for all awards,
net of related tax effects (3,040) (3,393) (2,780)

Pro forma net income $ 45,439 $ 68,477 $ 60,443
Net income per share:
Basic – as reported $ .97 $ 1.44 $ 1.28
Basic – pro forma $ .92 $ 1.39 $ 1.24
Diluted – as reported $ .96 $ 1.41 $ 1.25
Diluted – pro forma $ .91 $ 1.36 $ 1.22

Earnings Per Share (“EPS”):

Basic EPS is calculated as net income available to common
stockholders divided by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
EPS is calculated as net income available to common
stockholders divided by the diluted weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted weighted average number of common shares is
calculated to reflect the potential dilution that would occur
if stock options or other contracts to issue common stock
were exercised and resulted in additional common shares
outstanding. The net income amount used in the
Company’s EPS calculations is the same for both basic and
diluted EPS.

Share data is as follows (in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Weighted average shares 49,252 49,205 48,632
Dilutive potential common 
shares 685 1,075 1,099

Diluted weighted average 
shares 49,937 50,280 49,731

Anti-dilutive options 
not included 976 957 906

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid
money market instruments. Highly liquid money market
instruments include securities and repurchase agreements
with original maturities of three months or less, money
market mutual funds, and securities on which the interest
or dividend rate is adjusted to market rate at least
every three months.At December 31, 2002 and 2001, cash
and cash equivalents included approximately $2,838,000
and $804,000, respectively, which is restricted under
debt agreements.

Rental Property Revenues:

In accordance with SFAS No. 13,“Accounting for Leases,”
income on leases which include scheduled increases in
rental rates over the lease term (other than scheduled
increases based on the Consumer Price Index) and/or
periods of free rent is recognized on a straight-line basis.

The Company makes valuation adjustments to all tenant-
related revenue based upon the tenant’s credit and business
risk. The Company generally suspends the accrual of
income on specific tenants where rental payments or reim-
bursements are delinquent 90 days or more.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.” Under the provisions of SFAS No. 142,
there will be no amortization of goodwill and other intan-
gible assets that have indefinite useful lives. Instead, these
assets must be tested for impairment upon the adoption of
SFAS No. 142 and annually thereafter. On January 1, 2002,
the adoption date, the Company had goodwill totaling
approximately $15.6 million. The Company’s initial
impairment test of this goodwill in the first quarter 2002
and the annual test in the fourth quarter 2002 both resulted
in no impairment.Amortization expense recorded related to
this goodwill was approximately $654,000 and $321,000
for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively. Had amortization expense not been recorded in
2001 and 2000, diluted net income per share would have
been $1.42 and $1.25 for the years ended December 31,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

In August 2001, SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” was issued,
which the Company adopted effective January 1, 2002.
SFAS No. 144 addresses financial accounting and reporting
for the impairment of long-lived assets and long-lived
assets to be disposed of. This statement supersedes SFAS

No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of,”
and establishes criteria beyond that previously specified in
SFAS No. 121 to determine when a long-lived asset is to
be considered as held for sale. The Company believes that
the impairment provisions of SFAS No. 144 are similar to
SFAS No. 121, and the adoption had no impact on the
Company’s financial statements. SFAS No. 144 also
requires that the gains and losses from the disposition
of certain real estate assets and the related historical oper-
ating results be included in a separate line item, Income
from Discontinued Operations, in the Consolidated
Statements of Income for all periods presented. In the normal
course of business, the Company recycles invested capital by
disposing of existing assets and redeploying the proceeds in
order to enhance total returns to stockholders.

In October 2002, the Company sold Salem Road Station,
a 67,000 square foot retail neighborhood center, which
met the criteria of a qualifying disposition in accordance
with SFAS No. 144 in the third quarter 2002. The
Company reclassified the carrying amount of Salem Road
Station to an Operating Property Held for Sale as of
December 31, 2001 in the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Additionally, the results of operations
for Salem Road Station were reclassified as Income
from Discontinued Operations in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Income for all periods
presented. The following table details the adjustments
made to the Consolidated Statements of Income ($ in
thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Rental property revenues $ 626 $ 715 $ 161
Rental property operating 
expenses 121 159 37

Depreciation and amortization 139 199 42
Provision for income taxes 139 136 31
Income from discontinued 
operations $ 227 $ 221 $ 51

Gain on sale of investment 
property $ 1,320

Provision for income taxes 146
Gain on sale of investment 
property, net $ 1,174

In April 2002, SFAS No. 145,“Rescission of FASB Nos. 4,
44 and 64, Amendment of FASB No. 13, and Technical
Corrections,” was issued. SFAS No. 145, which will be
effective for the Company January 1, 2003, among other
things eliminates the requirement that all gains and losses
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from the extinguishment of debt be aggregated and, if
material, classified as an extraordinary item. However, a
gain or loss arising from such an event or transaction would
continue to be classified as an extraordinary item if the
event or transaction is both unusual in nature and infre-
quent in occurrence per the criteria in APB No. 30,
“Reporting the Results of Operations – Reporting the
Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events
and Transactions.” As part of the transition guidance,
although net income would not be affected, gains and losses
from debt extinguishment in prior periods that do not
meet the criteria in APB No. 30 cannot be treated as
extraordinary items for all periods presented. The
Company anticipates that the extraordinary item recog-
nized in 2002 will be reclassified to recurring operations
upon adoption of SFAS No. 145.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation
No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, an interpretation of
SFAS Nos. 5, 57 and 107, and rescission of FASB
Interpretation No. 34.” The interpretation elaborates on
the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its financial
statements. It also requires a guarantor to recognize a
liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in
issuing the guarantee at the inception of a guarantee. This
interpretation, which the Company adopted in the fourth
quarter 2002, had no effect on the financial position or
results of operations of the Company.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation
No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an
Interpretation of ARB No. 51.” The interpretation
addresses consolidation by business enterprises of variable
interest entities. The Company does not anticipate that
adoption will have a material effect on the Company’s con-
solidated financial statements.

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle:

The cumulative effect of change in accounting principle is
related to the Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” in 2000.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the accompanying
financial statements and notes. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Reclassifications:

Certain 2001 and 2000 amounts have been reclassified to
conform with the 2002 presentation.

2. CREC and CREC II

CREC develops and owns an interest in certain real estate
projects and provides development, management and leasing
services to the Company and to other owners. Cousins
provides all the operating capital for CREC and has
approval rights over services CREC performs. At
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, Cousins owned 100%
of CREC’s $5,025,000 par value 8% cumulative preferred
stock and 100% of CREC’s non-voting common stock,
which is entitled to 95% of any dividends of CREC after
preferred dividend requirements. T. G. Cousins, Chairman
of the Board of Cousins and an officer and director of
CREC,owns 100% of the voting common stock of CREC,
which he purchased for $100 and which voting common
stock is entitled to 5% of any dividends of CREC after
preferred dividend requirements. CREC is included in the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements, but is taxed
as a regular corporation. CREC has paid no common
dividends to date and for financial reporting purposes, none
of CREC’s income is attributable to Mr. Cousins’ minority
interest because the face amount of CREC’s preferred stock
plus accumulated dividends thereon ($11,055,000 in aggre-
gate) exceeds CREC’s $9,104,456 of equity.

CREC II owns the Company’s investment in Cousins
Properties Services LP (see Note 5). Cousins provides all of
the operating capital for CREC II and has approval rights
over services CREC II performs. Cousins owns 100% of
CREC II’s $835,000 par value, 10% cumulative preferred
stock and 100% of CREC II’s non-voting common stock,
which is entitled to 95% of any dividends of CREC II after
preferred dividend requirements. Mr. Cousins, who is also
an officer and director of CREC II, owns 100% of the
voting common stock of CREC II, which he purchased 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for $64,000 and which voting common stock is entitled to
5% of any dividends of CREC II after preferred dividen-
drequirements. CREC II is included in the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements, but is taxed as a regular
corporation. CREC II has paid no common dividends to
date and as of December 31, 2002, undistributed cumula-
tive preferred dividends were $83,500. Minority interest
has been recognized for Mr. Cousins’ ownership.

3. Notes and Other Receivables

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, notes and other receiv-
ables included the following ($ in thousands):

2002 2001

650 Massachusetts Avenue 
Mortgage Note $ 26,309 $ 25,001

Miscellaneous Notes 12 18
Cumulative rental revenue recognized 
on a straight-line basis in excess of 
revenue accrued in accordance with 
lease terms (see Note 1) 10,022 7,885

Other Receivables, net (see Note 1) 14,264 11,629
Total Notes and Other Receivables $ 50,607 $ 44,533

650 Massachusetts Avenue Mortgage Notes – On March
10, 1994, the Company purchased from the Resolution
Trust Corporation (“RTC”) two notes aggregating
$37 million (a $32 million and a $5 million note) at a total
cost of approximately $28 million. The two notes, which
resulted from the RTC’s restructuring in December 1993
of a $53 million note, are secured by a first deed of trust on
an office building containing approximately 250,000

rentable square feet located at 650 Massachusetts Avenue,
NW, in Washington, D.C. The notes mature December 31,
2003, at which time their unamortized balance will be a
maximum of approximately $27.6 million. The notes
require minimum monthly payments totaling $2,818,000
annually,which are supported by a U.S. government agency
lease. For financial reporting purposes, the discounted notes
are treated as non-amortizing notes to the extent of the
minimum required payments, with the minimum required
payments treated as interest income. Amounts in excess of
the minimum required payments ($543,000 and $750,000
in 2001 and 2000, respectively) were treated as a reduction
of principal. During 2000, it became probable that the
Company’s $5 million note would be repaid in full (which
subsequently occurred in April 2001), thus reducing the
carrying value of the $32 million note to $23 million,
which was substantially lower than the balance of the $32
million note originally estimated to be approximately $27.6
million.As a result, beginning in the third quarter of 2000
and continuing until the notes mature December 31, 2003,
the Company is amortizing into interest income this dif-
ference of approximately $4.6 million between the
Company’s carrying value and the amount due under the
note, which equals $327,000 per quarter.

Fair Value – The estimated fair value of the Company’s
$26.3 million and $25.0 million of notes receivable at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, was $27.2 million
and $29.2 million, respectively, calculated by discounting
future cash flows from the notes receivable at estimated rates
at which similar loans would be made currently.

4. Notes Payable, Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, notes payable included the following ($ in thousands):

2002 2001

Share of Share of
Unconsolidated Unconsolidated

Company Joint Ventures Total Company Joint Ventures Total

Floating Rate Credit Facility
and Floating Rate Debt $ 160,253 $ 6,606 $ 166,859 $ 153,816 $ 7,614 $ 161,430

Other Debt (primarily non-recourse
fixed rate mortgages) 509,539 259,248 768,787 431,459 268,299 699,758

$ 669,792 $ 265,854 $ 935,646 $ 585,275 $ 275,913 $ 861,188
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The following table summarizes the terms of the debt outstanding at December 31, 2002 ($ in thousands):

Term/
Amortization Balance at

Period Final December 31,
Description Rate (Years) Maturity 2002

Company Debt:
Credit facility (a maximum of $275,000), unsecured Floating based on LIBOR 3/N/A 8/31/04 $ 159,157
Perimeter Expo mortgage note 8.04% 10/30 8/15/05 19,792
Northside/Alpharetta I mortgage note 7.70% 8/28 1/01/06 9,903
101 Independence Center mortgage note 8.22% 11/25 12/01/07 44,928
Lakeshore Park Plaza mortgage note 6.78% 10/30 11/01/08 10,088
101 Second Street mortgage note 8.33% 10/30 4/19/10 88,055
The Avenue East Cobb mortgage note 8.39% 10/30 8/01/10 38,255
Meridian Mark Plaza mortgage note 8.27% 10/28 10/01/10 24,926
Presidential MarketCenter mortgage note 7.65% 10/30 5/02/11 27,667
600 University Park Place mortgage note 7.38% 10/30 8/10/11 13,822
333 John Carlyle/1900 Duke Street mortgage note 7.00% 10/25 11/01/11 48,459
333/555 North Point Center East mortgage note 7.00% 10/30 11/01/11 31,960
Note secured by Company’s interest in CSC Associates, L.P. 6.958% 10/20 3/01/12 148,283
Other miscellaneous notes Various Various Various 4,497

669,792

Share of Unconsolidated Joint Venture Debt:
Wildwood Associates:

2300 Windy Ridge Parkway mortgage note 7.56% 10/25 12/01/05 28,831
2500 Windy Ridge Parkway mortgage note 7.45% 10/20 12/15/05 10,406
3200 Windy Hill Road mortgage note 8.23% 10/28 1/01/07 31,969
4100/4300 Wildwood Parkway mortgage note 7.65% 15/25 4/01/12 13,444
4200 Wildwood Parkway mortgage note 6.78% 15.75/18 3/31/14 20,403

Cousins LORET Venture, L.L.C.:
Two Live Oak Center mortgage note 7.90% 10/30 10/01/07 14,263
The Pinnacle mortgage note 7.11% 12/30 12/31/09 33,877

CP Venture Two LLC:
North Point MarketCenter mortgage note 8.50% 10/25 7/15/05 3,037
100/200 North Point Center East mortgage note 7.86% 10/25 8/01/07 2,630

Ten Peachtree Place Associates mortgage note LIBOR + 0.75% 7/18 12/31/08 6,606
CC-JM II Associates mortgage note 7.00% 17/17 4/01/13 9,622
Charlotte Gateway Village, LLC mortgage note 6.41% 15/15 12/01/16 90,766

265,854
$ 935,646

In 1996, CSC Associates, L.P. (“CSC”), an entity in which
the Company owns a 50% equity interest, issued $80 mil-
lion of 6.377% collateralized non-recourse mortgage notes
(the “Prior Notes”) secured by CSC’s interest in the Bank
of America Plaza building and related leases and agree-
ments. CSC loaned the $80 million proceeds of the Prior
Notes to the Company under a non-recourse loan (the
“Prior Cousins Loan”) secured by the Company’s interest
in CSC under the same payment terms as those of the
Prior Notes. The Company paid all costs of issuing the
Prior Notes and the Prior Cousins Loan, including a
$400,000 fee to an affiliate of Bank of America

Corporation. In addition, the Company paid a fee to an
affiliate of Bank of America Corporation of .3% per annum
of the outstanding principal balance of the Prior Notes.

On February 22, 2002, CSC refinanced the Prior Notes,
completing a $150 million non-recourse mortgage note
payable (the “New Loan”) with an interest rate of 6.958%
and a maturity of March 1, 2012. The New Loan is secured
by CSC’s interest in the Bank of America Plaza building
and related leases and agreements. CSC loaned the $150
million proceeds of the non-recourse mortgage note
payable to the Company under a non-recourse loan (the
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“New Cousins Loan”) secured by the Company’s interest
in CSC under the same payment terms as those of the
New Loan. The Company paid all costs of issuing the New
Loan and the New Cousins Loan, including a $750,000 fee
to an affiliate of Bank of America Corporation.

On March 15, 2002, $65,873,925 of the proceeds from the
New Loan was used to pay off in full the Prior Notes. The
$65,873,925 included $65,525,710 for the payoff of the
principal balance as of February 15, 2002 (the last payment
date of the Prior Notes) and $348,215 for accrued interest
from February 15, 2002 through March 14, 2002. The
Prior Cousins Loan to CSC was also repaid in full.

In connection with the prepayment in full of the Prior
Notes, the Company paid a prepayment premium in the
amount of $2,871,925. This prepayment premium, along
with the unamortized balance of closing costs paid by the
Company related to the Prior Notes in the amount of
$629,278, were expensed as an Extraordinary Item in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.

Because CSC loaned the proceeds of the Prior Notes and
the New Loan to the Company, the Prior Notes and the
New Loan and their related interest expense and maturities
are disclosed as obligations of the Company and are not
included in the unconsolidated joint venture balances dis-
closed in the above table or in Note 5. (The related note
receivable and interest income are also not included in
Note 5).

The Wildwood Associates 2300 Windy Ridge Parkway,
3200 Windy Hill Road,4100/4300 Wildwood Parkway and
4200 Wildwood Parkway mortgage notes and the CC-JM II
Associates mortgage note provide for additional amortiza-
tion in the later years of the notes (over that required by the
amortization periods disclosed in the table) concurrent with
scheduled rent increases.

The Company has a credit facility with Bank of America,
Wachovia and certain other banks for $275 million, which
expires August 31, 2004. The credit facility is unsecured
and bears interest at a rate equal to the London Interbank
Offering Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a spread which is based on
the ratio of total debt to total assets, as defined by the credit
facility, according to the following table:

Applicable
Leverage Ratio Spread

≤ to 35% 1.05%
>35.00% but ≤ 45% 1.15%
>45.00% but ≤ 50% 1.25%
>50.00% but ≤ 55% 1.45%
>55% 1.70%

At December 31, 2002, the Company had outstanding
letters of credit totaling $4,657,000 and assets, including the
Company’s share of joint venture assets, with carrying values
of $670,003,000 were pledged as security on the debt of the
Company and its share of unconsolidated joint venture debt.
The fixed rate long-term mortgage debt of the Company
and its unconsolidated joint ventures is non-recourse to the
Company.

As of December 31, 2002, the weighted average maturity
of the Company’s debt, including its share of unconsolidated
joint ventures, was eight years.

The aggregate maturities of the indebtedness at December
31, 2002 summarized above are as follows ($ in thousands):

Share of
Unconsolidated

Company Joint Ventures Total

2003 $ 8,274 $ 10,318 $ 18,592
2004 168,867 11,146 180,013
2005 37,035 48,957 85,992
2006 9,040 10,737 19,777
2007 47,933 39,554 87,487
Thereafter 398,643 145,142 543,785

$669,792 $265,854 $935,646

For each of the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, interest expense was recorded as follows ($ in thousands):

Share of Unconsolidated
Company Joint Ventures Total

Year Expensed Capitalized Total Expensed Capitalized Total Expensed Capitalized Total

2002 $ 37,423 $ 5,934 $ 43,357 $ 13,208 $ – $ 13,208 $ 50,631 $ 5,934 $ 56,565
2001 27,610 9,712 37,322 17,086 1,186 18,272 44,696 10,898 55,594
2000 13,596 15,285 28,881 14,819 3,545 18,364 28,415 18,830 47,245
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The Company has future lease commitments under land
leases aggregating $45.9 million over an average remaining
term of 57 years. As of December 31, 2002, outstanding
commitments for the construction and design of real estate
projects, including the Company’s share of unconsolidated 

joint venture commitments, totaled approximately $131.5
million.At December 31, 2002 and 2001, the estimated fair
value of the Company’s notes payable, including its share of
unconsolidated joint ventures, was $989 million and $882
million, respectively.

5. Investment in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures
The following information summarizes financial data and principal activities of unconsolidated joint ventures in which the
Company had ownership interests ($ in thousands). Audited financial statements for CSC Associates, L.P. are included in
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Company’s
Total Assets Total Debt Total Equity Investment

2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

Summary of Financial Position:
Wildwood Associates $ 226,342 $ 237,729 $ 210,103 $ 217,794 $ 8,266 $ 12,674 $ (37,565) $ (35,144)
Charlotte Gateway Village, LLC 203,648 209,360 181,531 189,370 20,861 18,903 10,655 10,828
CSC Associates, L.P. 168,493 171,731 – – 163,870 168,937 84,133 86,793
Cousins LORET Venture, L.L.C. 113,129 120,482 96,279 97,430 13,629 20,156 6,599 9,918
285 Venture, LLC 58,929 60,203 – – 57,716 58,971 31,031 31,554
CPI/FSP I, L.P. 50,971 50,393 – – 48,925 49,111 25,277 25,659
Crawford Long – CPI, LLC 49,599 43,218 – – 47,894 40,701 25,434 21,214
Ten Peachtree Place Associates 27,586 19,743 13,212 15,228 11,665 4,216 4,262 693
Temco Associates 24,405 20,728 – – 24,241 20,391 12,678 10,332
CC-JM II Associates 23,133 23,973 19,243 20,418 3,364 2,944 2,204 1,998
Brad Cous Golf Venture, Ltd. 11,789 11,966 – – 11,541 11,678 5,767 5,839
CP Venture LLC – – – – – – 12,957 13,900
CP Venture Two LLC 228,225 238,317 49,285 50,380 177,579 186,558 1,777 1,864
Other 700 – – – 700 – 307 (51)

$1,186,949 $1,207,843 $ 569,653 $ 590,620 $ 590,251 $ 595,240 $ 185,516 $ 185,397

Company’s Share
Total Revenues Net Income (Loss) of Net Income (Loss)

2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000

Summary of Operations:
Wildwood Associates $ 55,755 $ 53,631 $ 50,918 $ 12,720 $ 10,917 $ 7,688 $ 6,360 $ 5,223 $ 3,844
Charlotte Gateway Village, LLC 29,377 16,029 2,841 3,167 (232) (593) 1,184 620 762
CSC Associates, L.P. 42,489 39,948 39,339 23,083 21,574 21,378 11,466 10,711 10,613
Cousins LORET Venture, L.L.C. 21,226 21,604 20,717 (1,376) (107) (767) (729) (54) (384)
285 Venture, LLC 11,490 11,217 3,434 5,774 5,312 1,684 2,725 2,596 831
CPI/FSP I, L.P. 8,670 2,198 – 4,412 775 – 2,119 352 –
Crawford Long – CPI, LLC 5,336 – – 1,924 – – 927 – –
Ten Peachtree Place Associates 1,172 4,324 4,438 (1,708) 737 959 (854) 169 279
Temco Associates 14,428 12,378 10,023 3,850 3,815 2,708 1,949 1,720 678
CC-JM II Associates 4,722 4,509 4,356 1,158 952 786 546 464 381
Brad Cous Golf Venture, Ltd. 1,142 1,011 853 (137) (134) 61 (68) (67) 31
CP Venture LLC – – – – – – 955 923 611
CP Venture Two LLC 32,681 34,048 34,046 9,099 8,792 5,815 91 87 58
Cousins Properties Services LP – 1,400 10,076 – 203 3,161 – 153 1,649
Other – – 55 (1) – 55 (1) – 99

$228,488 $202,297 $181,096 $ 61,965 $ 52,604 $ 42,935 $26,670 $ 22,897 $ 19,452
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Company’s Share of

Cash Flows From Cash Flows From 
Operating Activities Operating Activities Cash Distributions

2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000

Summary of Operating Cash Flows:
Wildwood Associates $ 22,085 $ 19,712 $ 18,430 $ 11,043 $ 9,856 $ 9,215 $ 8,564 $ 1,500 $ 6,000
Charlotte Gateway Village, LLC 9,710 1,240 1,524 4,855 620 762 1,408 19,053 731
CSC Associates, L.P. 32,000 30,482 28,410 16,000 15,241 14,205 14,075 14,860 13,990
Cousins LORET Venture, L.L.C. 4,939 7,584 6,830 2,470 3,792 3,415 2,575 2,950 2,900
285 Venture, LLC 6,797 5,738 1,840 3,399 2,869 920 3,296 2,918 1,044
CPI/FSP I, L.P. 6,356 1,514 – 3,178 757 – 2,700 846 –
Crawford Long – CPI, LLC 2,776 – – 1,388 – – 1,000 – –
Ten Peachtree Place Associates (978) 1,836 1,113 (489) 278 367 – 183 200
Temco Associates 3,898 3,440 1,356 1,949 1,720 678 – – 1,800
CC-JM II Associates 2,152 1,988 1,826 1,076 994 913 339 595 468
Brad Cous Golf Venture, Ltd. 696 558 454 348 279 227 – – –
CP Venture LLC – – – – – – 1,898 1,824 2,068
CP Venture Two LLC 19,808 20,878 21,764 2,278 2,401 2,426 181 174 197
Cousins Properties Services LP – 204 265 – 153 – – 75 3,140
Other – – 55 – – – – – –

$110,239 $ 95,174 $ 83,867 $ 47,495 $ 38,960 $ 33,128 $36,036 $ 44,978 $ 32,538

Wildwood Associates – Wildwood Associates was formed
in 1985 between the Company and IBM, each as 50%
partners. The partnership owns six office buildings totaling
2.1 million rentable square feet, other income-producing
commercial properties and additional developable land in
Wildwood Office Park (“Wildwood”) in Atlanta, Georgia.
Wildwood is an office park containing a total of approxi-
mately 285 acres, of which approximately 90 acres are
owned by Wildwood Associates and an estimated 13 acres
are committed to be contributed to Wildwood Associates
by the Company; the Company owns the balance of the
developable acreage in the office park. The 13 acres of land
which are committed to be contributed to Wildwood
Associates by the Company are included in Wildwood
Associates’ financial statements under the caption “Land
Committed to be Contributed” and are not included
in “Land Held for Investment or Future Development” in
the Company’s financial statements. All costs associated
with the land are borne by Wildwood Associates.

Through December 31, 2002, IBM had contributed $46.6
million in cash plus properties having an agreed-upon
value of $16.3 million for its one-half interest in Wildwood
Associates. The Company has contributed $84,000 in cash
plus properties having an agreed-upon value of $54.5
million for its one-half interest in the partnership and is
obligated to contribute the aforesaid estimated 13 acres of
additional land with an agreed-upon value of $8.3 million.

The Company and IBM each lease office space from
the partnership at rates comparable to those charged to
third parties.

The Company’s investment as recorded in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets, which was a negative investment of $37.6
million at December 31, 2002 due to partnership distribu-
tions in excess of contributions, is based upon the
Company’s historical cost of the properties at the time they
were contributed or committed to be contributed to the
partnership, whereas its investment as recorded on
Wildwood Associates’ books ($4.1 million at December 31,
2002) is based on the agreed-upon values at the time the
partnership was formed.

Charlotte Gateway Village, LLC (“Gateway”) – On
December 14, 1998, the Company and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Bank of America Corporation formed
Gateway for the purpose of developing and owning
Gateway Village, a 1.1 million rentable square foot office
building complex in downtown Charlotte, North
Carolina. Construction of Gateway Village commenced in
July 1998. The project, which is 100% leased to Bank of
America Corporation with a term of 15 years, became
partially operational for financial reporting purposes in
November 2000. Gateway’s net income or loss and cash
distributions are allocated to the members as follows: first to
the Company so that it receives a cumulative compounded
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return equal to 11.46% on its capital contributions, second
to a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bank of America
Corporation until it has received an amount equal to the
aggregate amount distributed to the Company and then
50% to each member.

CSC Associates, L.P. (“CSC”) – CSC was formed in 1989
between the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Bank of America Corporation, each as 50% partners. CSC
owns the 1.3 million rentable square foot Bank of America
Plaza in midtown Atlanta, Georgia.

CSC’s net income or loss and cash distributions are allo-
cated to the partners based on their percentage interests.
See Note 4 for a discussion of the presentation of certain
CSC assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

Cousins LORET Venture, L.L.C. (“Cousins LORET”) –
Effective July 31, 1997, Cousins LORET was formed
between the Company and LORET Holdings, L.L.L.P.
(“LORET”), each as 50% members. LORET contributed
Two Live Oak Center, a 279,000 rentable square foot office
building located in Atlanta, Georgia, which was renovated
in 1997. LORET also contributed an adjacent four-acre
site on which construction of The Pinnacle, a 424,000
rentable square foot office building, was completed in
November 1998. The Company contributed $25 million
of cash to Cousins LORET to match the value
of LORET’s agreed-upon equity.

285 Venture, LLC – In March 1999, the Company and a
commingled trust fund advised by J.P. Morgan Investment
Management Inc. (the “J.P. Morgan Fund”) formed 285
Venture, LLC, each as 50% partners, for the purpose of
developing and owning 1155 Perimeter Center West, an
approximately 362,000 rentable square foot office building
complex in Atlanta, Georgia. The J.P. Morgan Fund con-
tributed the approximately six-acre site upon which 1155
Perimeter Center West was developed. The land had an
agreed-upon value of approximately $5.4 million, which
the Company matched with a cash contribution. In
January 2000, 1155 Perimeter Center West became partially
operational for financial reporting purposes.

CPI/FSP I, L.P. – In May 2000, CPI/FSP I, L.P., a limited
partnership, was formed. 50% of the venture is owned by
the Company through a general partnership, Cousins
Austin GP, Inc. (1%), and a limited partnership, Cousins
Austin, Inc. (49%). The remaining 50% is owned by a gen-
eral partnership, Fifth Street Properties - Austin, LLC (1%),
and a limited partnership, Fifth Street Properties - Austin

Investor, LLC (49%), which are both owned by
CommonWealth Pacific LLC and CalPERS. CPI/FSP I,
L.P. developed Austin Research Park – Buildings III and IV,
two approximately 174,000 and 184,000 rentable square
foot office buildings, respectively, in Austin, Texas, which
became partially operational for financial reporting purposes
in June 2001 and September 2001, respectively.
Additionally, the venture owns an adjacent pad for future
development of an approximately 175,000 rentable square
foot office building.

Crawford Long – CPI, LLC – In October 1999, the Company
formed Crawford Long – CPI, LLC with Emory University,
each as 50% partners, for the purpose of developing and
owning the Emory Crawford Long Medical Office Tower,
an approximately 358,000 rentable square foot medical
office building located in midtown Atlanta, Georgia, which
became partially operational for financial reporting pur-
poses in February 2002.

Ten Peachtree Place Associates (“TPPA”) – TPPA is a
general partnership between the Company (50%) and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of The Coca-Cola Company
(“Coca-Cola”) (50%). The venture owns Ten Peachtree
Place, a 260,000 rentable square foot building located in
midtown Atlanta, Georgia. The building was 100% leased
to Coca-Cola through November 30, 2001. Additionally,
the venture owns an adjacent pad for future development
of an approximately 400,000 rentable square foot office
building or a 350-unit apartment complex.

The TPPA partnership agreement generally provides that
each partner is entitled to receive 50% of cash flows from
operating activities, net of note principal amortization,
through the term of the Coca-Cola lease. After the Coca-
Cola lease expired, in accordance with the partnership
agreement, each partner must contribute on a 50% basis
capital contributions needed for tenant improvements and
leasing commissions related to the releasing of the building,
as well as to fund any operating deficits. The cash flows
from operating activities, net of note principal amortiza-
tion, will be used first to repay these capital contributions
plus 8% interest to each partner on a 50% basis.After these
capital contributions plus 8% interest are repaid in full, the
Company and its partner are entitled to receive 15% and
85% of the cash flows (including any sales proceeds),
respectively, until the two partners have received a combined
distribution of $15.3 million. Thereafter, each partner is
entitled to receive 50% of cash flows.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Temco Associates – Temco Associates was formed in 1991
as a partnership between CREC (50%) and a subsidiary of
Temple-Inland Inc. (50%). Temco Associates has an option
through March 2006, with no carrying costs, to acquire the
fee simple interest in approximately 7,500 acres in Paulding
County, Georgia (northwest of Atlanta, Georgia). The part-
nership also has an option to acquire interests in a timber
rights only lease covering approximately 22,000 acres. This
option also expires in March 2006, with the underlying
lease expiring in 2025. The options may be exercised in
whole or in part over the option period, and the option
price of the fee simple land was $1,107 per acre at January
1, 2003, escalating at 6% on January 1 of each succeeding
year during the term of the option.

During 2002, 2001 and 2000, approximately 1,595, 487
and 734 acres, respectively, of the option related to the fee
simple interest was exercised. In 2002, approximately 607
acres were simultaneously sold for gross profits of
$1,005,000 and approximately 78 acres were held for sale
under three-year options to two third parties.
Approximately three acres were sold in 2002 for gross prof-
its of $336,000, which were a component of the 13 acres
purchased in 2000 that were being held for sale or future
development. Also, in 2002, approximately 281 acres were
acquired for additional phases of the Bentwater residential
community and approximately 629 acres were acquired
and are being held for a future development in Paulding
County. In 2001, approximately 359 acres were simultane-
ously sold for gross profits of $1,902,000 and approximately
128 acres were held for sale under a three-year option to a
third party.Approximately two acres were sold in 2001 for
gross profits of $291,000, which were a component of the
13 acres purchased in 2000 that were being held for sale or
future development. In 2000, approximately 461 acres were
simultaneously sold for gross profits of $1,546,000 and
approximately 13 acres are being held for sale or future
development (of which approximately three and two acres
were sold in 2002 and 2001, respectively, as noted above).
Also in 2000, approximately 260 acres were acquired for
the development of the Bentwater residential community.
Approximately 1,669 lots will be developed within
Bentwater on an approximate total of 1,290 acres. Temco
Associates sold 289, 233 and 219 lots within Bentwater in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

CC-JM II Associates – This joint venture was formed in
1994 between the Company and an affiliate of
CarrAmerica Realty Corporation, each as 50% general
partners, to develop and own John Marshall-II, a 224,000
rentable square foot office building in suburban
Washington, D.C. The building is 100% leased until January
2011 to Booz-Allen & Hamilton, an international consulting
firm, as a part of its corporate headquarters campus.

Brad Cous Golf Venture, Ltd. (“Brad Cous”) – Effective
January 31, 1998, the Company formed Brad Cous with
W.C. Bradley Co., each as 50% partners, for the purpose of
developing and owning The Shops at World Golf Village,
an approximately 80,000 square foot retail center located
adjacent to the PGA Hall of Fame in St.Augustine, Florida.

CP Venture LLC, CP Venture Two LLC and CP Venture Three

LLC – On November 12, 1998 (the “Closing Date”), the
Company entered into a venture arrangement (the
“Venture”) with The Prudential Insurance Company of
America (“Prudential”). On such date the Company con-
tributed its interest in nine properties (the “Properties”) to
the Venture. At the time of contribution, the Properties
were valued by the Company and Prudential based on
arm’s length negotiations at a total gross value of
$283,750,000 subject to mortgages in the principal
amount of $53,281,219. The following table details the
values allocated to each of the Properties and the mortgages
to which certain Properties were subject ($ in thousands):

Allocated 
Value Mortgage Net Value

First Union Tower $ 53,000 $ – $ 53,000
Grandview II 23,000 – 23,000
100 North Point Center 
East and 200 North Point 
Center East 46,050 24,582 21,468

Presbyterian Medical Plaza 8,600 – 8,600
North Point MarketCenter 56,750 28,699 28,051
Mansell Crossing II 12,350 – 12,350
Greenbrier MarketCenter 51,200 – 51,200
Los Altos MarketCenter 32,800 – 32,800

$283,750 $ 53,281 $230,469

Under the Venture arrangements, Prudential contributed
cash to the Venture equal to the agreed-upon net value of
the properties ($230,468,781) at dates specified in the
agreements.
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The structure of the Venture is as follows: CP Venture
LLC, the parent entity, owns a 99% interest in each of CP
Venture Two LLC (“Property Activity LLC”) and CP
Venture Three LLC (“Development Activity LLC”). The
Company owns a 1% direct interest in Property Activity
LLC and Prudential owns a 1% direct interest in
Development Activity LLC. The contributed properties
are owned and operated by Property Activity LLC. The
Company has a 10.6061% interest in CP Venture LLC’s
99% interest in Property Activity LLC, which, combined
with its 1% direct interest, gives it a net interest of 11.5%
in the economics of Property Activity LLC. Prudential has
the remaining net interest of 88.5% in the economics of
Property Activity LLC.Unless both parties agreed otherwise,
Property Activity LLC was not permitted to sell the con-
tributed properties until the end of lock-out periods which
was November 2001 for retail properties and November 2002
for office and medical office properties.

The cash contributed by Prudential was contributed to
Development Activity LLC. To the extent such funds are
not yet needed for development activity, Development
Activity LLC can temporarily invest such funds; such
potential investments may include temporary loans to the
Company. The Venture earns interest on the outstanding
balance at the same rate as the Company’s credit facility.
Prudential is entitled to 10.6061% of CP Venture LLC’s
99% share of the economics of Development Activity LLC,
which, combined with its 1% direct interest, entitles it to
an overall net interest of 11.5% in the economics of
Development Activity LLC. Prudential first receives a
priority current return of 9.5% per annum on its share
(11.5%) of the initial capital ($230.469 million) (“Initial
Capital”) of Development Activity LLC. Prudential also
receives a liquidation preference whereby it is first entitled
to, subject to capital account limitations, sufficient proceeds
to allow it to achieve an overall 11.5% internal rate of
return on its share of the Initial Capital of Development
Activity LLC. After these preferences to Prudential, the
Company has certain preferences, with the residual interests
in the development activity being shared according to the
interests of the parties. All Prudential priority current
returns have been distributed to Prudential during the year.

CP Venture LLC appointed the Company to serve as
Development Manager and in such capacity to act for it in
connection with its ownership of Development Activity
LLC. CP Venture LLC also appointed Prudential to serve
as Property Manager and in such capacity to act for it in

connection with its ownership of Property Activity LLC.
Prudential appointed the Company to serve as property
manager of the Properties for Property Activity LLC. The
Company also serves as Administrative Manager of CP
Venture LLC. Property Activity LLC is expected to continue
to operate the contributed Properties. Development
Activity LLC is expected to develop commercial real estate
projects over time, as selected by the Development
Manager. Development Activity LLC may also make
acquisitions, which are anticipated to be redevelopment or
value-added opportunities. Development Activity LLC
developed Mira Mesa MarketCenter, a 480,000 square foot
retail center in suburban San Diego, California, which
became partially operational in April 2000. In December
2000, Development Activity LLC acquired One Georgia
Center, an approximately 363,000 rentable square foot
office building in midtown Atlanta, Georgia. Development
Activity LLC also developed The Avenue Peachtree City,
an approximately 169,000 square foot retail center in sub-
urban Atlanta, Georgia, which became partially operational
for financial reporting purposes in April 2001. The parties
anticipate that some of the projects currently under con-
sideration by the Company will be undertaken by
Development Activity LLC, although the Company has no
obligation to make any particular opportunity available to
Development Activity LLC.

For financial reporting purposes, the Properties were
deconsolidated and contributed to Property Activity LLC.
Both Property Activity LLC and CP Venture LLC are
being treated as unconsolidated joint ventures.
Development Activity LLC is treated as a consolidated
entity in the Company’s financial statements as the
Company has a controlling financial interest. The
Company initially deferred the net gain on the contributed
Properties and is recognizing this net gain as Gain on Sale
of Investment Properties, Net of Applicable Income Tax
Provision in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Income as capital distributions of cash are made from
Development Activity LLC to the Company or when the
Properties initially contributed to Property Activity LLC
are liquidated by Property Activity LLC. The liquidation of
the Properties may be in the form of actual sales of the
Properties or in the form of the depreciation of the
Properties which have an average remaining life of 26
years. The total net deferred gain on the contributed
Properties on the Closing Date was approximately $96.8 mil-
lion over the cost of the Properties. Including depreciation

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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recapture of $23.8 million, the total net deferred gain on
the Closing Date was approximately $120.6 million, which
has been reduced by approximately $17.0 million through
December 31, 2002 and is reflected as Deferred Gain in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Cousins Properties Services LP (formerly Cousins Stone LP) –
Cousins Stone LP was formed on June 1, 1999 when CREC
II acquired Faison’s 50% interest in Faison-Stone. On July 3,
2000, CREC II purchased an additional 25% interest in
Cousins Stone LP from RD Stone Interests, Ltd., increasing
CREC II’s total ownership to 75%. Effective March 1, 2001,
CREC II purchased the remaining 25% interest in Cousins
Stone LP, bringing its total interest to 100%, and beginning
on that date Cousins Stone LP was consolidated with CREC
II. Effective August 6, 2001, the name was changed to
Cousins Properties Services LP (“CPS”).CPS is a full-service
real estate company headquartered in Dallas, Texas, that
specializes in third party property management and leasing of
Class “A” office properties.

Other – This category consists of several other joint ven-
tures including:

CL Realty, LLC – In August 2002, CL Realty, LLC was
formed between the Company and Lumbermen’s
Investment Corporation, a subsidiary of Temple-Inland
Inc., each as 50% members, for the purpose of developing
and investing primarily in residential properties.

During 2002, CL Realty, LLC, through two subsidiaries,
acquired a 37.5% limited partnership interest in LM Land
Holdings, LP (“Land Holdings”). Land Holdings has
acquired approximately 1,242 acres of undeveloped land in
Fort Bend County, Texas and intends to subdivide and
develop the property for sale of commercial tracts and a res-
idential community, Long Meadow Farms. Once certain
Equity Funding Conditions, as defined, are met, CL Realty,
LLC will have a total capital commitment to Land
Holdings of $8 million.At December 31, 2002, $700,000 of
that commitment has been contributed to Land Holdings.

Cousins-Hines Partnerships – Through the Cousins-Hines
partnerships, the Company effectively owns 9.8% of the
One Ninety One Peachtree Tower in Atlanta, Georgia,
subject to a preference in favor of the majority partner.
This 1.2 million rentable square foot office building, which
opened in December 1990, was developed by the
Company in partnership with the Hines Interests Limited
Partnership and the Dutch Institutional Holding Company
(“DIHC”). In October 1997, Cornerstone Properties, Inc.
purchased DIHC’s interest in the partnership. In June 2000,

Equity Office Properties Trust acquired Cornerstone
Properties, Inc. Because the Company’s effective ownership
of this building is less than 20%, the Company accounts for
its investment using the cost method of accounting, and
therefore the above tables do not include the Company’s
share of One Ninety One Peachtree Tower.

Additional Information – The Company recognized
$8,037,000, $10,877,000 and $7,955,000 of development,
construction, leasing, and management fees from unconsoli-
dated joint ventures in 2002,2001 and 2000, respectively.See
Note 1, Fee Income and Cost Capitalization, for a discussion
of the accounting treatment for fees from unconsolidated
joint ventures.

6. Stockholders’ Investment

Stock Dividend:

On October 2, 2000, a 3-for-2 stock split effected in the
form of a 50% stock dividend was awarded to stockholders
of record on September 15, 2000. In conjunction with the
stock dividend, 16,259,000 shares of common stock were
issued and $16,259,000 was transferred from Additional
Paid-In-Capital to Common Stock.All prior period shares
outstanding, per share amounts, stock options, SARs and
restricted stock (“stock grants”) have been restated for the
effect of the stock dividend.

1999 Incentive Stock Plan:

In May 1999, the stockholders of the Company approved
the adoption of the 1999 Incentive Stock Plan (the “1999
Plan”), which covered the issuance of 1,343,288 shares of
common stock, all of which shares had been available for
use under the 1995 Stock Incentive Plan, the Stock Plan for
Outside Directors and the Stock Appreciation Right Plan
(collectively, the “Predecessor Plans”). Upon adoption of
the 1999 Plan, no additional shares of common stock can be
issued under the Predecessor Plans. In May 2002 and May
2001, the stockholders of the Company approved amend-
ments to the 1999 Plan to increase the number of shares of
common stock available under the 1999 Plan by 1,100,000
in each year. As of December 31, 2002, 970,363 shares are
authorized to be awarded pursuant to the 1999 Plan, which
allows awards of stock options, stock grants or SARs.

Stock Options – At December 31, 2002, 5,374,945 stock
options awarded to key employees and outside directors
pursuant to both the 1999 Plan and the Predecessor Plans
were outstanding.All stock options have a term of 10 years
from the date of grant. Key employee stock options granted
prior to December 28, 2000 have a vesting period of five
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years under both the 1999 Plan and the Predecessor Plans.
Options granted on or after December 28, 2000 have a vest-
ing period of four years. Outside director stock options are
fully vested on the grant date under the 1999 Plan but had
a vesting period of one year under the Predecessor Plans.

SARs – The Company issued SARs to certain employees
under one of the Predecessor Plans and the CREC Stock
Appreciation Plan (the “SAR plans”). Under the CREC
Stock Appreciation Plan, no SARs can be granted after
January 1, 1999.

Included in the Consolidated Statements of Income under
the heading “stock appreciation right expense (credit)” are
increases or decreases in accrued compensation expense to
reflect changes in the market value of the common stock
between periods and forfeitures of non-vested SARs of
terminated employees.

No SARs were outstanding at December 31, 2002. At
December 31, 2001, the total amount accrued for SARs
outstanding was approximately $318,000.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following is a summary of stock option activity under the 1999 Plan, the Predecessor Plans and the SAR plans (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

Weighted Average
Number of Shares Exercise Price Per Share

2002 2001 2000 2002 2001 2000

1999 Plan and Predecessor Plans
Outstanding, beginning of year 5,206 4,969 4,469 $ 20.80 $ 20.10 $ 17.98
Granted 1,269 940 1,021 $ 24.08 $ 24.93 $ 27.41
Exercised (786) (157) (316) $ 15.51 $ 15.16 $ 13.33
Forfeited (314) (546) (205) $ 24.39 $ 23.14 $ 20.73
Outstanding, end of year 5,375 5,206 4,969 $ 22.14 $ 20.80 $ 20.10
Shares exercisable at end of year 2,908 2,935 2,336 $ 20.22 $ 18.00 $ 16.26

SARs
Outstanding, beginning of year 23 88 130 $ 10.83 $ 10.12 $ 10.03
Exercised (23) (65) (35) $ 10.83 $ 9.86 $ 10.05
Forfeited – – (7) N/A N/A $ 8.84
Outstanding, end of year – 23 88 N/A $ 10.83 $ 10.12
Shares exercisable at end of year – 23 88 N/A $ 10.83 $ 10.12

The following table provides a breakdown by exercise price range of the number of shares, weighted average exercise price,
and remaining contractual lives for all stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2002 (in thousands,
except per share amounts and option life):

For Outstanding Options

Weighted 
Weighted Average
Average Contractual Life

Exercise Price Range Outstanding Exercisable Exercise Price (in years)

1999 Plan and Predecessor Plans
$10.50 to $12.99 435 435 $ 11.25 2.2
$13.00 to $17.50 342 342 $ 15.33 3.7
$17.51 to $23.45 1,763 1,407 $ 21.15 5.7
$23.46 to $28.08 2,835 724 $ 25.25 8.8
Total 5,375 2,908 $ 22.14 6.9
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Stock Grants – As indicated above, the 1999 Plan provides
for stock grants, which may be subject to specified per-
formance and vesting requirements.

In December 2000 and February 2001, the Company
awarded 169,777 and 20,000 shares, respectively, of per-
formance accelerated restricted stock (“PARS”) to certain
key employees. The PARS will become fully vested upon
the achievement of certain defined performance require-
ments, which can be met as early as the end of the calendar
year which includes the third anniversary of the grant date.
The PARS will vest in any event if the employee is
employed on November 14, 2006. The shares were issued
on the grant date and recorded in Common Stock and
Additional Paid-in-Capital, with the offset recorded in
Unearned Compensation, a separate component of
Stockholders’ Investment, in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Unearned Compensation is
being amortized into compensation expense beginning
January 1, 2001 over six years, which is the current estimate
of the time it will take to meet the performance require-
ments. If this estimate changes, the amortization of the
Unearned Compensation will be adjusted accordingly. If a
key employee leaves the Company prior to the vesting of
the PARS, said employee’s unvested rights in the PARS are
forfeited and any compensation expense amortized prior to
such forfeiture is reversed in the year of forfeiture.
Compensation expense recorded related to the PARS was
approximately $591,000 and $1,019,000 in 2002 and 2001,
respectively. As of December 31, 2002, 155,238 shares of
PARS were outstanding.

In 1999, a stock grant of 22,185 shares was made subject to
specified vesting requirements. Compensation expense
related to this stock grant, accrued over the three-year vesting 

period, was approximately $56,000, $80,000 and $226,000 in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Shares vested under this
grant were 4,437, 5,916 and 7,395 in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.As of December 31, 2002, no shares of this stock
grant were outstanding.

In 1995, 150,000 shares were awarded subject to specified
performance and vesting requirements. The specified per-
formance and vesting requirements were met in 2000, and
the 150,000 shares were issued.

Outside directors can elect to receive any portion of their
director fees in stock, based on 95% of the market price.
Outside directors elected to receive 7,120, 4,356 and 4,432
shares of stock in lieu of cash for director fees in 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively.

Stock Repurchase Plan:

In November 2001, the Board of Directors of the
Company adopted a new stock repurchase plan authoriz-
ing the repurchase of up to five million shares of common
stock prior to January 1, 2004. During 2002, the Company
repurchased 1,776,482 shares of common stock for an
aggregate purchase price of approximately $41,891,000
under this plan. The November 2001 plan replaced and
superseded the previous stock repurchase plan adopted in
February 2001 under which the Company repurchased
527,400 shares of common stock for an aggregate purchase
price of approximately $12,475,000. There were no repur-
chases during 2000.

Ownership Limitations:

In order to maintain Cousins’ qualification as a REIT,
Cousins’ Articles of Incorporation include certain restric-
tions on the ownership of more than 3.9% of the
Company’s common stock.

Distribution of REIT Taxable Income:

The following is a reconciliation between dividends declared and dividends applied in 2002, 2001 and 2000 to meet REIT
distribution requirements ($ in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Dividends declared $ 73,345 $ 68,595 $ 60,315
Additional dividends paid deduction due to 5% discount on dividends reinvested – 730 623
That portion of dividends declared in current year, and paid in current year,

which was applied to the prior year distribution requirements (5,656) (3,807) (5,786)
That portion of dividends declared in subsequent year, and paid in subsequent year,

which will apply to current year – 5,656 3,807
Dividends in excess of current year REIT distribution requirements (15,806) – –
Dividends applied to meet current year REIT distribution requirements $ 51,883 $ 71,174 $ 58,959
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tax Status of Dividends:

Dividends in excess of the amount required to meet REIT
distribution requirements were paid during 2002 (see Note
7). Since electing to qualify as a REIT in 1987, Cousins has
had no accumulated undistributed taxable income.

In 2002, the Company designated 22% of the dividend
paid December 20, 2002 as 20% capital gain dividends
which qualify as 5-year gain. In 2001, the Company desig-
nated 76% of the dividend paid May 30, 2001, 1% of the
dividend paid August 24, 2001, and 11% of the dividend
paid December 21, 2001 as 20% capital gain dividends. In
addition, 24% of the dividend paid May 30, 2001 was des-
ignated as 25% unrecaptured Section 1250 gain dividends.

In 2000, the Company designated 91% of the dividend
paid May 30, 2000 as 20% capital gain dividends and 5% as
25% unrecaptured Section 1250 gain dividends. All other
dividends paid in 2002, 2001 and 2000 were taxable as
ordinary income dividends.

In addition, in 2002, an amount calculated as 0.62% of total
dividends was an “adjustment attributed to depreciation of
tangible property placed in service after 1986” for alterna-
tive minimum tax purposes. This amount was passed
through to stockholders and must be used as an item of
adjustment in determining each stockholder’s alternative
minimum taxable income.

7. Income Taxes
In 2002, 2001 and 2000, because Cousins qualified as a REIT and distributed all of its taxable income (see Note 6), it
incurred no federal income tax liability. The differences between taxable income as reported on Cousins’ tax return (esti-
mated 2002 and actual 2001 and 2000) and Consolidated Net Income as reported herein are as follows ($ in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Consolidated net income $ 47,872 $ 70,815 $ 62,043
Consolidating adjustments (6,787) (13,694) (24,759)
CREC net (income) loss (3,470) (81) 771
CREC II net loss (income) 371 990 (738)
Cousins net income for financial reporting purposes 37,986 58,030 37,317
Adjustments arising from:

Sales of investment properties (4,134) (5,729) (3,967)
Income from unconsolidated joint ventures (principally depreciation, revenue 

recognition and operational timing differences) 5,669 4,843 13,120
Rental income recognition (2,959) (1,697) (302)
Interest income recognition (1,187) (1,342) (469)
Property taxes deferred 758 263 (1)
Interest expense 3,580 8,557 8,565
Compensation expense under the 1999 and Predecessor Plans (2,345) (1,475) (2,189)
Depreciation 11,669 9,510 8,560
Unearned compensation expense 530 987 –
Amortization 12 (2,308) (1,602)
Predevelopment expense 604 (1,114) (341)
Capitalized salaries 1,065 2,391 –
Other 635 258 268

Cousins taxable income $ 51,883 $ 71,174 $ 58,959
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The consolidated provision (benefit) for income taxes is composed of the following ($ in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

CREC and CREC II and their wholly-owned subsidiaries:
Currently payable:

Federal $ 820 $ – $ –
State 48 – –

868 – –
Adjustments arising from:

Income from unconsolidated joint ventures 378 399 (556)
Operating loss carryforward (164) (793) 333
Stock appreciation right expense 98 458 741
Residential lot sales, net of cost of sales (90) (169) (1,430)
Interest expense (411) (400) (456)
Non-qualified stock options 1,671 9 262
Sale of investment property (519) – –
Other (44) (83) (32)

919 (579) (1,138)
CREC and CREC II provision (benefit) for income taxes 1,787 (579) (1,138)
Cousins provision for state income taxes 24 24 24
Provision applicable to discontinued operations (285) (136) (31)
Consolidated provision (benefit) applicable to income from continuing operations $ 1,526 $ (691) $ (1,145)

The net income tax provision (benefit) differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax
rate to CREC’s and CREC II’s income (loss) before taxes as follows ($ in thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

Federal income tax provision (benefit) $ 1,598 34% $ (490) 34% $ (398) 34%
State income tax provision (benefit), net of 

federal income tax effect 188 4 (57) 4 (81) 4
Other 1 – (32) 2 (659) 59
CREC and CREC II provision (benefit) 

for income taxes 1,787 38% (579) 40% (1,138) 97%
Cousins provision for state income taxes 24 24 24
Provision applicable to discontinued operations (285) (136) (31)
Consolidated provision (benefit) applicable to 

income from continuing operations $ 1,526 $ (691) $ (1,145)

The components of CREC and CREC II’s net deferred
tax liability are as follows ($ in thousands):

CREC and CREC II

2002 2001

Deferred tax assets $ 5,672 $ 5,445
Deferred tax liabilities (7,104) (6,823)
Net deferred tax liability $ (1,432) $ (1,378)

The tax effect of significant temporary differences repre-
senting CREC and CREC II’s deferred tax assets and
liabilities are as follows ($ in thousands):

CREC and CREC II

2002 2001

Operating loss carryforward $ 55 $ 734
Income from unconsolidated
joint ventures (4,008) (3,629)

Residential lot sales, net
of cost of sales 2,649 2,559

Interest capitalization (1,131) (1,149)
Other 1,003 107
Net deferred tax liability $ (1,432) $ (1,378)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. Property Transactions

Office Division:

In February 2002, 55 Second Street, an approximately
379,000 rentable square foot office building in San Francisco,
California, became partially operational for financial report-
ing purposes.Also in February 2002, Emory Crawford Long
Medical Office Tower, an approximately 358,000 rentable
square foot medical office facility in Atlanta, Georgia,
owned by Crawford Long – CPI,LLC (see Note 5), became
partially operational for financial reporting purposes.

Retail Division:

In August 2002, the Company purchased 22.17 acres of land
for approximately $4,945,000 for the development of The
Avenue West Cobb, an approximately 206,000 square foot
specialty retail center in suburban Atlanta, Georgia.
Construction commenced on this center in September 2002.

In October 2002, the Company sold Salem Road Station,
an approximately 67,000 square foot retail center in suburban
Atlanta, Georgia for $7,379,000, which was approximately
$940,000 over the cost of the center. Including deprecia-
tion recapture of approximately $380,000 and net of an
income tax provision of approximately $146,000, the net
gain on this sale was approximately $1,174,000. Also in
October 2002, the Company sold two outparcels at Salem
Road Station for $548,000, which was approximately
$195,000 over the cost of the outparcels. The gain on this
sale, net of an income tax provision of approximately
$74,000, was approximately $121,000.

In December 2002, the Company purchased 11.91 acres of
land for approximately $1,911,000 for the development of
The Shops of Lake Tuscaloosa, an approximately 70,000
square foot retail center in Tuscaloosa, Alabama.
Construction of this center commenced in February 2003.

Land Division:

The Company is currently developing or has developed
nine residential communities, eight in suburban Atlanta,
Georgia and one in Pine Mountain, Georgia. These nine
communities include land on which approximately 2,957
lots are being or were developed, of which 166, 121 and
217 lots were sold in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Of the nine communities, four containing 1,076 lots were
completely sold as of December 31, 2000. Two communi-
ties containing 704 lots were completely sold as of
December 31, 2002. The three residential communities

remaining under development at December 31, 2002 con-
tain approximately 1,177 lots, 146 of which have been sold.

In November 1998, Temco Associates began development
of the Bentwater residential community, which will consist
of approximately 1,669 lots on approximately 1,290 acres
(see Note 5). Temco Associates sold 289, 233 and 219 lots
in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

In December 2002, the Company sold approximately 5.5
acres of Wildwood land for $2,500,000. The net gain on
this sale was approximately $2,143,000.

9. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
– Supplemental Information

Interest paid (net of amounts capitalized) (see Note 4) and
income taxes paid (net of refunds) were as follows ($ in
thousands):

2002 2001 2000

Interest paid $ 36,484 $ 28,271 $ 11,027
Income taxes paid, net
of $1,358, $866, and
$652 refunded in 2002,
2001 and 2000,
respectively $ 681 $ 344 $ 3,141

Significant non-cash financing and investing activities
included the following:

a. In 2002, 2001 and 2000, approximately $26,836,000,
$43,682,000 and $361,617,000, respectively, were trans-
ferred from Projects Under Construction to Operating
Properties.

b. In 2002 and 2000, approximately $942,000 and
$1,066,000, respectively, were transferred from Land
Held for Investment or Future Development to
Residential Lots Under Development. In 2001, approxi-
mately $17,860,000 was transferred from Land Held for
Investment or Future Development to Projects Under
Construction.

c. In conjunction with the consolidation of CPS in March
2001 (see Note 5), approximately $3,174,000 was trans-
ferred from Investment in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures
to Other Assets.
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d. In 2002, an adjustment of the PARS granted in 2000
(see Note 6) was made and approximately $12,000 of
Common Stock and approximately $330,000 of
Additional Paid-In-Capital were transferred to
Unearned Compensation. In 2001, an adjustment of the
PARS granted in 2000 was made and approximately
$2,000 of Common Stock and approximately $89,000 of
Additional Paid-In-Capital were transferred to
Unearned Compensation. In 2000, in conjunction with
the award of PARS, approximately $170,000 was record-
ed as Common Stock, approximately $4,520,000 was
recorded as Additional Paid-In-Capital, and approximate-
ly $4,690,000 was recorded as Unearned Compensation.
In conjunction with the 3-for-2 split effected in the form
of a 50% stock dividend on October 2, 2000 (see Note
6), approximately $16,259,000 was transferred from
Additional Paid-In-Capital to Common Stock.

10. Rental Property Revenues

The Company’s leases typically contain escalation provi-
sions and provisions requiring tenants to pay a pro rata
share of operating expenses. The leases typically include
renewal options and are classified and accounted for as
operating leases.

At December 31, 2002, future minimum rentals to be
received by consolidated entities under existing non-can-
celable leases, excluding tenants’ current pro rata share of
operating expenses, are as follows ($ in thousands):

Office and
Medical
Office Retail Total

2003 $ 85,736 $ 30,558 $116,294
2004 82,629 30,503 113,132
2005 76,702 28,017 104,719
2006 74,822 24,419 99,241
2007 71,030 22,956 93,986
Subsequent to 2007 325,419 146,272 471,691

$716,338 $282,725 $999,063

The future minimum rentals above for office and medical
office include approximately $78.4 million for the Cable &
Wireless Internet Services, Inc. (“Cable”) lease on 158,000
rentable square feet at 55 Second Street. Effective January
31, 2003, the Company and Cable executed an agreement 

under which Cable’s lease was terminated, conditioned
upon the payment to the Company of a termination fee of
$20 million. The Company received $10 million of the ter-
mination fee in February 2003, with the remaining $10
million due April 1, 2003 from an irrevocable letter of
credit held by the Company.

11. Reportable Segments

The Company has three reportable segments: Office
Division, Retail Division, and Land Division. The Office
Division and Retail Division develop, lease and manage
office buildings and retail centers, respectively. The Land
Division owns various tracts of strategically located land
which are being held for investment or future develop-
ment. The Land Division also develops single-family
residential communities which are parceled into lots and
sold to various home builders.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as
those described in Significant Accounting Policies (see
Note 1). The management of the Company evaluates per-
formance of its reportable segments based on Funds From
Operations (“FFO”). The Company calculates its FFO
using the National Association of Real Estate Investment
Trusts (“NAREIT”) definition of FFO with certain adjust-
ments. NAREIT defines FFO as net income (computed in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States), excluding gains or losses from sales of
depreciable property, plus depreciation and amortization,
and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and
joint ventures.Adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships
and joint ventures are calculated to reflect FFO on the same
basis. The Company adjusts its FFO to (i) eliminate the
recognition of rental revenues on a straight-line basis and
(ii) reflect stock appreciation right expense on a cash basis.

The Company revised its method of allocating costs to its
reportable segments in the third quarter of 2001. Prior
period reportable segments have not been restated as it is
impractical to do so.
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The Company’s reportable segments are broken down based on what type of product the division provides. The divisions
are managed separately because each product they provide has separate and distinct development issues, leasing and/or sales
strategies and management issues. The notations (100%) and (JV) used in the following tables indicate wholly-owned and
unconsolidated joint ventures, respectively, and all amounts are in thousands.

Office Retail Land Unallocated
2002 Division Division Division and Other Total

Rental property revenues (100%) $ 130,151 $ 36,283 $ – $ 101 $ 166,535
Rental property revenues (JV) 78,155 2,619 – – 80,774
Development income, management

fees and leasing and other fees (100%) 16,266 1,570 399 – 18,235
Other income (100%) – – 9,126 4,393 13,519
Other income (JV) – – 2,040 – 2,040

Total revenues 224,572 40,472 11,565 4,494 281,103
Rental property operating expenses (100%) 41,073 8,851 – 7 49,931
Rental property operating expenses (JV) 23,673 641 – – 24,314
Other expenses (100%) 19,360 6,644 10,234 43,375 79,613
Other expenses (JV) 3,201 65 90 9,937 13,293
Provision for income taxes from operations – – – 1,665 1,665

Total expenses 87,307 16,201 10,324 54,984 168,816
Gain on sale of undepreciated investment properties – – 2,143 – 2,143
Consolidated funds from operations 137,265 24,271 3,384 (50,490) 114,430
Depreciation and amortization (100%) (40,418) (11,836) – (6) (52,260)
Depreciation and amortization (JV) (17,559) (986) – – (18,545)
Effect of the recognition of rental

revenues on a straight-line basis (100%) 2,130 7 – – 2,137
Effect of the recognition of rental

revenues on a straight-line basis (JV) 8 – – – 8
Adjustment to reflect stock appreciation

right expense on an accrual basis – – – 318 318
Gain on sale of investment properties, net

of applicable income tax provision 1,884 3,401 – – 5,285
Extraordinary loss – – – (3,501) (3,501)
Net income $ 83,310 $ 14,857 $ 3,384 $ (53,679) $ 47,872
Total assets $ 866,685 $ 263,308 $ 34,135 $ 83,949 $1,248,077
Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures $ 156,165 $ 16,324 $ 13,027 $ – $ 185,516
Capital expenditures $ 56,269 $ 17,200 $ 14,519 $ – $ 87,988

Reconciliation to Consolidated Revenues 2002 2001 2000

Rental property revenues (100%) $166,535 $ 143,089 $ 111,875
Rental property revenues from discontinued operations (100%) (626) (715) (161)
Effect of the recognition of rental revenues on a straight-line basis (100%) 2,137 2,380 2,111
Development income, management fees and leasing and other fees 18,235 19,489 10,700
Residential lot and outparcel sales 9,126 6,682 13,951
Interest and other 4,393 6,061 5,995
Total consolidated revenues $199,800 $ 176,986 $ 144,471

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Office Retail Land Unallocated
2001 Division Division Division and Other Total

Rental property revenues (100%) $ 109,470 $ 33,324 $ – $ 295 $ 143,089
Rental property revenues (JV) 71,242 2,432 – 14 73,688
Development income, management

fees and leasing and other fees (100%) 18,229 960 300 – 19,489
Development income, management

fees and leasing and other fees (JV) 1,050 – – – 1,050
Other income (100%) – – 6,682 6,061 12,743
Other income (JV) – – 1,745 25 1,770

Total revenues 199,991 36,716 8,727 6,395 251,829
Rental property operating expenses (100%) 35,918 9,269 – 39 45,226
Rental property operating expenses (JV) 21,308 598 – 7 21,913
Other expenses (100%) 20,193 8,035 7,977 30,583 66,788
Other expenses (JV) 897 – 25 15,158 16,080
Benefit for income taxes from operations – – – (555) (555)

Total expenses 78,316 17,902 8,002 45,232 149,452
Gain on sale of undepreciated investment properties – – 2,011 – 2,011
Consolidated funds from operations 121,675 18,814 2,736 (38,837) 104,388
Depreciation and amortization (100%) (32,771) (10,294) – (6) (43,071)
Depreciation and amortization (JV) (15,461) (941) – – (16,402)
Effect of the recognition of rental

revenues on a straight-line basis (100%) 2,380 – – – 2,380
Effect of the recognition of rental

revenues on a straight-line basis (JV) 784 – – – 784
Adjustment to reflect stock appreciation

right expense on an accrual basis – – – 1,251 1,251
Gain on sale of investment properties, net

of applicable income tax provision 2,135 19,341 9 – 21,485
Net income $ 78,742 $ 26,920 $ 2,745 $ (37,592) $ 70,815
Total assets $ 846,413 $ 264,348 $ 23,319 $ 82,549 $1,216,629
Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures $ 158,207 $ 16,858 $ 10,332 $ – $ 185,397
Capital expenditures $ 101,593 $ 24,295 $ 14,458 $ – $ 140,346
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Office Retail Land Unallocated
2000 Division Division Division and Other Total

Rental property revenues (100%) $ 82,158 $ 29,627 $ – $ 90 $ 111,875
Rental property revenues (JV) 66,677 2,316 – – 68,993
Development income, management

fees and leasing and other fees (100%) 10,059 400 241 – 10,700
Development income, management

fees and leasing and other fees (JV) 5,247 – – – 5,247
Other income (100%) 1,745 1,825 12,126 4,250 19,946
Other income (JV) – 71 733 58 862

Total revenues 165,886 34,239 13,100 4,398 217,623
Rental property operating expenses (100%) 28,052 7,512 – (8) 35,556
Rental property operating expenses (JV) 18,595 533 – – 19,128
Other expenses (100%) 12,351 7,712 11,278 17,057 48,398
Other expenses (JV) 8,189 136 55 12,035 20,415
Benefit for income taxes from operations – – – (1,114) (1,114)

Total expenses 67,187 15,893 11,333 27,970 122,383
Gain on sale of undepreciated investment properties – – 564 – 564
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (566) – – – (566)
Consolidated funds from operations 98,133 18,346 2,331 (23,572) 95,238
Depreciation and amortization (100%) (23,030) (7,606) – (4) (30,640)
Depreciation and amortization (JV) (14,812) (813) – – (15,625)
Effect of the recognition of rental

revenues on a straight-line basis (100%) 2,111 – – – 2,111
Effect of the recognition of rental

revenues on a straight-line basis (JV) (482) – – – (482)
Adjustment to reflect stock appreciation

right expense on an accrual basis – – – 68 68
Gain on sale of investment properties, net

of applicable income tax provision 1,892 9,481 – – 11,373
Net income $ 63,812 $ 19,408 $ 2,331 $ (23,508) $ 62,043
Total assets $ 767,237 $ 289,124 $ 12,296 $ 47,095 $1,115,752
Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures $ 150,271 $ 16,993 $ 8,207 $ – $ 175,471
Capital expenditures $ 146,128 $ 59,803 $ 10,027 $ – $ 215,958

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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To Cousins Properties Incorporated:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Cousins Properties Incorporated (a Georgia corporation)
and consolidated entities (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of
income, stockholders’ investment and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of CSC Associates,
L.P., the Company’s investment in which is accounted for by use of the equity method. The Company’s equity of
$84,133,000 and $86,793,000 in the CSC Associates, L.P. net assets at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and of
$11,466,000, $10,711,000 and $10,613,000 in that partnership’s net income for the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2002, are included in the accompanying financial statements. The financial statements of CSC Associates,
L.P. were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for such partnership, is based solely on the report of such other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement.An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dis-
closures in the financial statements.An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits and the
report of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to above pres-
ent fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Cousins Properties Incorporated and consolidated entities as
of December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2000, the Company changed its method of accounting for derivative
instruments and hedging activities to conform to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 and recorded a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle on October 1, 2000. In 2002, the Company changed its method of
accounting for discontinued operations to conform to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
February 14, 2003

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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($ in thousands, except per share amounts) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

Rental property revenues $ 168,046 $ 144,754 $ 113,825 $ 62,480 $ 67,726
Development, management, leasing and other fees 18,235 19,489 10,700 13,899 9,578
Residential lot and outparcel sales 9,126 6,682 13,951 17,857 16,732
Interest and other 4,393 6,061 5,995 3,588 4,275
Total revenues 199,800 176,986 144,471 97,824 98,311
Income from unconsolidated joint ventures 26,670 22,897 19,452 19,637 18,423
Rental property operating expenses 49,015 43,826 33,379 19,087 17,702
Depreciation and amortization 54,248 44,453 32,742 16,859 15,173
Stock appreciation right expense (credit) 29 (276) 468 108 330
Residential lot and outparcel cost of sales 7,309 5,910 11,684 14,897 15,514
Interest expense 37,423 27,610 13,596 600 11,558
General, administrative and other expenses 33,202 31,953 22,578 18,153 15,250
Total expenses 181,226 153,476 114,447 69,704 75,527
Provision (benefit) for income taxes from operations 1,526 (691) (1,145) 2,442 (148)
Gain on sale of investment properties,

net of applicable income tax provision 6,254 23,496 11,937 58,767 3,944
Discontinued operations 1,401 221 51 – –
Extraordinary loss (3,501) – – – –
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle – – (566) – –
Net income $ 47,872 $ 70,815 $ 62,043 $ 104,082 $ 45,299
Basic net income per share $ .97 $ 1.44 $ 1.28 $ 2.16 $ .96
Diluted net income per share $ .96 $ 1.41 $ 1.25 $ 2.12 $ .94
Cash dividends declared per share $ 1.48 $ 1.39 $ 1.24 $ 1.12 $ .99
Total assets $1,248,077 $1,216,629 $1,115,752 $ 932,925 $ 752,858
Notes payable $ 669,792 $ 585,275 $ 485,085 $ 312,257 $ 198,858
Stockholders’ investment $ 408,884 $ 462,673 $ 454,467 $ 437,722 $ 379,865
Shares outstanding at year-end 48,386 49,425 49,210 48,261 47,754

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
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Results of Operations for the Three Years Ended 

December 31, 2002

General. Historically, the Company’s financial results have
been significantly affected by sale transactions and the fees
generated by, and start-up operations of, major real estate
developments, which transactions and developments do
not necessarily recur.Accordingly, the Company’s historical
financial statements may not be indicative of future oper-
ating results. The notes referenced in the discussion below
are the “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements”
included in this annual report.

Forward-Looking Statements. Certain matters contained
in this report are forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the federal securities laws and are subject to
uncertainties and risks. These include, but are not limited
to, general and local economic conditions, local real estate
conditions, the activity of others developing competitive
projects, the cyclical nature of the real estate industry, the
financial condition of existing tenants, interest rates, the
Company’s ability to obtain favorable financing or zoning,
the environmental impact, the effects of terrorism and
other risks detailed from time to time in the Company’s
filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
including the Form 8-K filed on March 9, 2001. The
words “believes,”“expects,”“estimates” and similar expres-
sions are intended to identify forward-looking statements.
Although the Company believes that its plans, intentions
and expectations reflected in such forward-looking state-
ments are reasonable, it can give no assurance that such
plans, intentions or expectations will be achieved. Such for-
ward-looking statements are based on current expectations
and speak only as of the date of such statements. The
Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or
revise any forward-looking statement,whether as a result of
future events, new information or otherwise.

Critical Accounting Policies. A critical accounting policy
is one which is both important to the portrayal of a company’s
financial condition and results of operations and requires
significant judgment or complex estimation processes.

As the Company is in the business of developing, owning
and managing office and retail real estate properties and
developing single-family residential communities which
are parceled into lots and sold to various home builders, its
critical accounting policies relate to cost capitalization,
impairment of long-lived assets, residential lot sales profit
recognition and valuation of receivables.

The Company expenses predevelopment costs incurred on
a potential project until it becomes probable that the proj-
ect will go forward. After a project becomes probable, all
subsequently incurred predevelopment costs, as well as
interest, real estate taxes and certain internal personnel and
associated costs directly related to the project under devel-
opment are capitalized. If the decision is made to abandon
development of a project that had been deemed probable,
all previously capitalized costs are expensed. Therefore, a
change in the probability of a project could result in the
expensing of significant costs incurred for predevelopment
activity for projects that are abandoned. Also, a change in
the estimated time and cost of construction could adversely
impact the return on a project and the amount of value
created from the development of a project.

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States, the Company periodically evaluates its
real estate assets to determine if there has been any impair-
ment in their carrying values and records impairment losses
if the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by
those assets are less than the assets’ carrying amounts or if
there are other indicators of impairment. The evaluation of
real estate investments involves many subjective assump-
tions dependent upon future economic events that affect
the ultimate value of the property.A change in assumptions
concerning future economic events from those assumed in
prior evaluations could result in an adverse change in the
value of a property and cause the recordation of an impair-
ment. At December 31, 2002, the Company did not own
any real estate assets that were impaired.

In its determination of the gross profit percentages to be
applied to its residential lot sales in order to calculate the
profits to be recognized on these sales, the Company
utilizes several estimates. Gross profit percentages are calcu-
lated based on the estimated lot sales prices divided by the
estimated costs of the development. The Company must
estimate the prices of the lots to be sold, the costs to com-
plete the development of the residential community and
the time period over which the lots, once completed, will
ultimately be sold. If the Company’s estimated lot sales or
costs of development, or the assumptions underlying each,
were to be revised or be rendered inaccurate, it would
affect the gross profit percentages and overall profit recog-
nized on these sales.

Receivables are reported net of an allowance for doubtful
accounts and may be uncollectible in the future. The
Company performs credit reviews and analyses on its tenants

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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and reviews its receivables regularly for potential collection
problems in computing the allowance recorded against
its receivables. This review process requires the Company
to make certain judgments regarding collectibility that
are inherently difficult to predict. A change in the judg-
ments made could result in an adjustment to the allowance
for doubtful accounts with a corresponding effect to
net income.

Rental Property Revenues and Operating Expenses. Rental
property revenues increased from $113,825,000 in 2000 to
$144,754,000 in 2001 and $168,046,000 in 2002.

Rental property revenues from the Company’s office divi-
sion increased approximately $20,431,000 in 2002. Three
office buildings, 55 Second Street, Cerritos Corporate
Center – Phase II and 1900 Duke Street, became partially
operational in February 2002, June 2001 and October 2000,
respectively. These properties contributed approximately
$16,315,000, $1,402,000 and $436,000, respectively, to the
2002 increase. Additionally, rental property revenues from
101 Second Street increased approximately $1,365,000 in
2002, primarily due to the recognition of termination fees
paid to effect the early termination of several tenants’ leas-
es. In August 2002, the Company entered into a
termination agreement with Arthur Andersen which ter-
minated its 148,000 square foot lease at 101 Second Street.
The result of the termination agreement with Arthur
Andersen did not have a material impact on rental property
revenues in 2002. However, there will be no economic
benefit to the Company or its rental property revenues
from the Arthur Andersen lease in 2003 and beyond. In
September 2002, the Company re-leased approximately
88,000 square feet of the former Arthur Andersen space.
There is no guarantee that the remainder of the Arthur
Andersen space will be re-leased in the near future. In
addition, the San Francisco market continues to be a diffi-
cult leasing market. Due to these uncertainties, the
Company cannot currently estimate the result of its efforts
to re-lease the 101 Second Street building and the resulting
impact on rental property revenues in 2003 and beyond.

Also contributing to the increase in rental property revenues
from the Company’s office division was an increase of approx-
imately $554,000 from Meridian Mark Plaza, as its average
economic occupancy increased from 94% in 2001 to 99%
in 2002, and an increase of approximately $443,000 from
Inforum, primarily due to lease termination fees received
from two tenants. Additionally, rental property revenues
increased approximately $483,000 from the 3301 Windy

Ridge Parkway Building due to the renewal of the single
tenant’s lease at a higher rental rate beginning May 2001.
The increase in rental property revenues was partially offset
by a decrease of approximately $1,178,000 from The Points
at Waterview, as its average economic occupancy decreased
from 73% in 2001 to 45% in 2002. The Points at Waterview
was 82% leased at December 31, 2002,with rent commencing
in March 2003 for a new tenant in 98,000 square feet.

Rental property revenues from the Company’s retail port-
folio increased approximately $2,966,000 in 2002. Rental
property revenues increased approximately $2,282,000
from The Avenue Peachtree City due both to the property
becoming partially operational for financial reporting pur-
poses in April 2001 and to the recognition of a termination
fee of approximately $719,000 in 2002. Substantially all of
the square feet terminated at The Avenue Peachtree City
has been re-leased. An increase in the average economic
occupancy of The Avenue of the Peninsula from 75% in
2001 to 80% in 2002 also contributed approximately
$1,295,000 to the increase in rental property revenues.
Additionally, rental property revenues from Mira Mesa
MarketCenter increased approximately $306,000, primari-
ly due to an expansion of the center in March 2002. Rental
property revenues decreased approximately $990,000
in 2002 due to the February 2001 sale of Colonial Plaza
MarketCenter, which partially offset the increase in rental
property revenues.

Rental property revenues from the Company’s office divi-
sion increased approximately $27,581,000 in 2001. The
December 2000 acquisitions of One Georgia Center and
The Points at Waterview increased rental property rev-
enues by approximately $6,442,000 and $3,294,000,
respectively, in 2001. Four office buildings, 555 North
Point Center East, 101 Second Street, 600 University Park
Place and 1900 Duke Street, which became partially oper-
ational for financial reporting purposes in February 2000,
April 2000, June 2000 and October 2000, respectively, con-
tributed approximately $996,000, $5,143,000, $1,636,000
and $2,534,000, respectively, to the increase. Additionally,
rental property revenues from Inforum increased approxi-
mately $1,979,000, as its average economic occupancy
increased from 87% in 2000 to 97% in 2001. Rental prop-
erty revenues increased approximately $2,335,000 from
Cerritos Corporate Center – Phase II, which became par-
tially operational for financial reporting purposes in June
2001. Rental property revenues increased approximately
$816,000 from AT&T Wireless Services Headquarters.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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Rental property revenues increased approximately
$477,000 in 2001 from 333 John Carlyle, as its average eco-
nomic occupancy increased from 89% in 2000 to 93% in
2001, and approximately $472,000 in 2001 from 615
Peachtree Street, as its average economic occupancy
increased from 82% in 2000 to 95% in 2001. Furthermore,
rental property revenues from Northside/Alpharetta II
increased approximately $507,000 in 2001, as its average
economic occupancy increased from 59% in 2000 to 70% in 2001.

Rental property revenues from the Company’s retail divi-
sion increased approximately $3,697,000 in 2001. Rental
property revenues increased approximately $3,729,000
from Mira Mesa MarketCenter and approximately
$3,082,000 from The Avenue of the Peninsula, both of
which became partially operational for financial reporting
purposes in May 2000. Rental property revenues also
increased approximately $1,829,000 in 2001 from The
Avenue Peachtree City, which became partially operational
for financial reporting purposes in April 2001. Rental
property revenues increased approximately $642,000 in
2001 from Presidential MarketCenter, as an additional
phase of the center became partially operational for finan-
cial reporting purposes in October 2000, and as the average
economic occupancy of the original center increased from
90% in 2000 to 95% in 2001. Rental property revenues
increased approximately $554,000 from Salem Road
Station, which became partially operational for financial
reporting purposes in October 2000, and approximately
$545,000 from The Avenue East Cobb, which became par-
tially operational for financial reporting purposes in
September 1999. The increase in rental property revenues
was partially offset by a decrease of approximately
$5,914,000 in 2001 from the February 2001 sale of Colonial
Plaza MarketCenter and by approximately $595,000 from
the March 2000 sale of Laguna Niguel Promenade.

Rental property operating expenses increased from
$33,379,000 in 2000 to $43,826,000 and $49,015,000 in
2001 and 2002, respectively. The increases in both 2001
and 2002 were due primarily to the aforementioned office
buildings and retail centers being leased-up or becoming
partially operational for financial reporting purposes, as
well as the aforementioned acquisitions of One Georgia
Center and The Points at Waterview in December 2000.
The increases in rental property operating expenses were
partially offset by approximately $500,000 in 2002 from
the aforementioned decrease in average economic occu-
pancy at The Points at Waterview and approximately 

$244,000 and $1,800,000 in 2002 and 2001, respectively,
from the aforementioned sale of Colonial Plaza
MarketCenter.

Development Income. Development income increased from
$4,251,000 in 2000 to $6,179,000 in 2001 and then
decreased to $4,625,000 in 2002. Development income
decreased approximately $1,166,000 in 2002 from
CPI/FSP I, L.P., as construction of Austin Research Park-
Buildings III and IV was completed. Development income
also decreased approximately $727,000 in 2002 from
Crawford Long – CPI, LLC, as construction of the Emory
Crawford Long Medical Office Tower was substantially
completed in February 2002. Additionally, development
income decreased approximately $215,000 in 2002 from 285
Venture, LLC, as construction of 1155 Perimeter Center
West was completed in 2001. The decrease in development
income in 2002 was partially offset by an increase in third
party development and advisory services of approximately
$687,000.

In 2001, development income increased approximately
$1,047,000 from CPS. Effective March 1, 2001, CREC II
purchased the remaining 25% interest in CPS, at which
point the operations of CPS were consolidated, whereas
the operations had previously been accounted for using the
equity method of accounting and therefore recognized as
joint venture income (see Note 5). Development income
increased approximately $1,225,000 from three third party
developments and approximately $371,000 from the
Emory Crawford Long Hospital campus redevelopment
and joint venture medical office tower. Tenant construc-
tion supervision fees of approximately $433,000 from a
tenant at Inforum also contributed to the increase in devel-
opment income. The increase was partially offset by a
decrease in development income of approximately
$738,000 from Gateway, as construction of Gateway
Village was completed, and a decrease of approximately
$691,000 from 285 Venture, LLC, as construction of 1155
Perimeter Center West was completed in 2001.

Management Fees. Management fees increased from
$4,841,000 in 2000 to $7,966,000 and $9,313,000 in 2001
and 2002, respectively. Approximately $921,000 of the
2002 increase was due to the aforementioned consolidation
of CPS. Of this increase, approximately $868,000 was from
a new third party contract which CPS obtained in October
2001. Management fees also increased approximately
$175,000 in 2002 from Crawford Long – CPI, LLC, due to
the aforementioned Emory Crawford Long Medical Office
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Tower becoming partially operational for financial report-
ing purposes in February 2002.

The 2001 increase was mainly due to the aforementioned
consolidation of CPS, which contributed approximately
$3,241,000 to the increase. Additionally, management fees
increased in 2001 due to lease-up of several properties at
certain joint ventures from which management fees are
recognized. The increases in 2001 were partially offset by
the disposition of the medical office third party manage-
ment division in October 2000, which partially offset the
increases by approximately $552,000.

Leasing and Other Fees. Leasing and other fees increased
from $1,608,000 in 2000 to $5,344,000 in 2001 and then
decreased to $4,297,000 in 2002. The decrease in 2002 is
primarily due to a decrease of approximately $1,130,000
from CPI/FSP I, L.P., as leasing fees were recognized for
the lease-up of Austin Research Park-Buildings III and IV
in 2001. Leasing and other fees from CPS decreased
approximately $822,000 due to decreased land sales at Las
Colinas. The CPS decrease was partially offset by an
increase in leasing and other fees of approximately
$533,000 from third party contracts and approximately
$454,000 from Ten Peachtree Place Associates, due to the
lease-up of the Ten Peachtree Place building.

Leasing and other fees increased approximately $3,663,000
in 2001 from the aforementioned consolidation of CPS.
The increase in 2001 was partially offset by a decrease in
leasing and other fees of approximately $443,000 from the
aforementioned disposition of the medical office third
party management division in October 2000.

Residential Lot and Outparcel Sales and Cost of Sales.

Residential lot and outparcel sales decreased from
$13,951,000 in 2000 to $6,682,000 in 2001 and then
increased to $9,126,000 in 2002. Residential lot sales
decreased from $12,126,000 in 2000 to $6,682,000 in 2001
and then increased to $8,579,000 in 2002 due to the sale
of 217 residential lots in 2000, 121 in 2001 and 166 in
2002.Additionally, there were three outparcel sales in 2000
totaling $1,825,000 and one in 2002 for $547,000.

Residential lot and outparcel cost of sales decreased from
$11,684,000 in 2000 to $5,910,000 in 2001 and then
increased to $7,309,000 in 2002. Residential lot cost of
sales was $10,463,000, $5,910,000 and $6,956,000 in 2000,
2001 and 2002, respectively, due partially to the aforemen-
tioned changes in lots sold during the periods and partially
to fluctuations in gross profit percentages used to calculate

the cost of sales for residential lot sales in certain of the res-
idential developments. Cost of sales of outparcels totaled
approximately $1,221,000 and $353,000 in 2000 and 2002,
respectively.

Interest and Other. Interest and other increased from
$5,995,000 in 2000 to $6,061,000 in 2001 and then
decreased to $4,393,000 in 2002. These changes are pri-
marily due to the $18.6 million note receivable from
Gateway, which was repaid in full in November 2001. The
interest rate on this note was floating based on LIBOR,
which decreased during 2001, resulting in a decrease in
interest income of approximately $341,000 in 2001.

Income From Unconsolidated Joint Ventures. (All amounts
reflect the Company’s share of joint venture income.)
Income from unconsolidated joint ventures increased from
$19,452,000 in 2000 to $22,897,000 and $26,670,000 in
2001 and 2002, respectively.

Income from Wildwood Associates increased from
$3,844,000 in 2000 to $5,223,000 and $6,360,000 in 2001
and 2002, respectively. The 2002 increase was primarily
due to an increase in income before depreciation, amorti-
zation and interest expense of approximately $803,000
from the 3200 Windy Hill Road Building, as its average
economic occupancy increased from 99% in 2001 to 100%
in 2002 and its tenant mix changed. The increase in 2001
was mainly due to an increase in income before deprecia-
tion, amortization and interest expense of approximately
$877,000 also from the 3200 Windy Hill Road Building
due to the renewal of a significant tenant’s lease at a higher
rental rate. An increase in income before depreciation,
amortization and interest expense of approximately $198,000
from the 2300 Windy Ridge Parkway Building due to an
increase in its average economic occupancy from 99% in
2000 to 100% in 2001 also contributed to the 2001 increase.
Additionally, interest expense decreased approximately
$214,000 in 2001, due to lower debt levels in 2001.

The loss from Cousins LORET decreased from $384,000
in 2000 to $54,000 in 2001 and then increased to $729,000
in 2002. The increase in loss in 2002 was primarily due to
a reduction in the average economic occupancy of Two
Live Oak Center from 98% in 2001 to 89% in 2002 and to
an increase of approximately $582,000 in depreciation and
amortization expense at Two Live Oak Center. The
decrease in the loss in 2001 was mainly due to an increase
in average economic occupancy at The Pinnacle from 92%
in 2000 to 98% in 2001.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
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Income from Temco Associates increased from $678,000 in
2000 to $1,720,000 in 2001 and $1,949,000 in 2002.
During 2002, 2001 and 2000, approximately 607, 359 and
461 acres, respectively, of the option related to the fee simple
interest were exercised and simultaneously sold. CREC’s
share of the gain on these and other tract sales was approx-
imately $668,000, $1,075,000 and $678,000 in 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively. Additionally, CREC began recog-
nizing profits on residential lot sales at Bentwater in 2001,
which contributed approximately $1,281,000 and
$645,000 to the increase in 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Income from Gateway increased from $620,000 in 2001 to
$1,184,000 in 2002.The Company recognizes an 11.46% cur-
rent preferred return on its equity in Gateway,which increased
from $3,200,000 to $10,556,000 in November 2001.

Income from Crawford Long – CPI, LLC was $927,000 in
2002, as Emory Crawford Long Medical Office Tower
became partially operational for financial reporting pur-
poses in February 2002.

Income from Ten Peachtree Place Associates decreased
from $169,000 in 2001 to a loss of $854,000 in 2002, as the
average economic occupancy of Ten Peachtree Place
decreased from 93% in 2001 to 14% in 2002. This property
was 100% leased as of December 31, 2002, with rent com-
mencing in March 2003 for the primary tenant in 227,000
square feet.

Income from CSC Associates, L.P. increased from
$10,711,000 in 2001 to $11,466,000 in 2002 primarily due
to an increase in rental revenues from a tenant whose
increase in rental rate did not require straight-lining under
SFAS No. 13.

Income from CPI/FSP I, L.P. was approximately $352,000
in 2001 and $2,119,000 in 2002. Austin Research Park –
Buildings III and IV became partially operational for
financial reporting purposes in June 2001 and September
2001, respectively.

Income from CP Venture LLC increased from $611,000 in
2000 to $923,000 in 2001. This increase was due to
decreases in depreciation and amortization expense.

Income from 285 Venture, LLC increased from $831,000
in 2000 to $2,596,000 in 2001 as 1155 Perimeter Center
West became partially operational for financial reporting
purposes in January 2000.

Income from CPS decreased from $1,649,000 in 2000 to
$153,000 in 2001. Effective March 1, 2001, CREC II pur-
chased the remaining 25% interest in Cousins Stone LP,
bringing its total interest to 100%, and beginning on that
date Cousins Stone LP was consolidated with CREC II.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and admin-
istrative expenses increased from $18,452,000 in 2000 to
$27,010,000 and $27,670,000 in 2001 and 2002, respec-
tively. The increase in 2002 was primarily due to increased
salaries and related benefits as a result of the aforemen-
tioned consolidation of CPS and new personnel in several
business units. Partially offsetting the increase in 2002 was
a decrease resulting from the capitalization of additional
general and administrative expenses to offset the partial
elimination of certain development and leasing fees from
joint ventures. The increase in 2001 was also primarily due
to the aforementioned consolidation of CPS, as well as a
decrease of general and administrative expenses capitalized
to projects under development due to a lower level of proj-
ects under development in 2001.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortiza-
tion increased from $32,742,000 in 2000 to $44,453,000
and $54,248,000 in 2001 and 2002, respectively. The
increases in both 2001 and 2002 were mainly due to the
aforementioned office buildings and retail centers becoming
operational for financial reporting purposes. The 2002
increase was also due to write-offs of unamortized tenant
improvements and leasing commissions related to certain
tenants who effected early terminations of their lease obli-
gations.Additionally, the acquisitions of One Georgia Center
and The Points at Waterview in December 2000 contributed
to the 2001 increase, which was partially offset by the sale of
Colonial Plaza MarketCenter in February 2001.

Stock Appreciation Right Expense (Credit). Stock apprecia-
tion right expense decreased $744,000 from an expense of
$468,000 in 2000, to a benefit of $276,000 in 2001 and
then increased $305,000 in 2002 to an expense of $29,000.
This non-cash item is primarily related to the number of
stock appreciation rights outstanding and the Company’s
stock price. Stock appreciation rights outstanding totaled
approximately 23,000 and 88,000 at December 31,2001 and
2000, respectively; none were outstanding at December 31,
2002. The Company’s stock price was $24.36 and $27.9375
per share at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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Interest Expense. Interest expense increased from
$13,596,000 in 2000 to $27,610,000 and $37,423,000 in
2001 and 2002, respectively. Interest expense before capi-
talization increased from $28,881,000 in 2000 to
$37,322,000 and $43,357,000 in 2001 and 2002, respec-
tively. Interest expense before capitalization increased in
both 2002 and 2001 due to higher average debt levels. The
note secured by the Company’s interest in CSC Associates,
L.P. was refinanced in February 2002, which increased the
borrowings under the loan from $80 million to $150
million (see Note 4). The Company completed four non-
recourse mortgages in 2001: Presidential MarketCenter in
May 2001, 600 University Park Place in July 2001, 333
John Carlyle/1900 Duke Street and 333/555 North Point
Center East in November 2001, and three non-recourse
mortgages in 2000: 101 Second Street in April 2000, The
Avenue East Cobb in July 2000 and Meridian Mark Plaza
in August 2000. The amount of interest capitalization (a
reduction of interest expense), which changes parallel to
the level of projects under development, decreased from
$15,285,000 in 2000 to $9,712,000 in 2001 and
$5,934,000 in 2002 due to a lower level of projects under
development in 2001 and 2002. Partially offsetting the
increase in interest expense was a reduction in interest on the
credit facility due to a decrease in the average floating rate.

Property Taxes on Undeveloped Land. Property taxes on
undeveloped land increased from $40,000 in 2000 to
$619,000 in 2001 and $675,000 in 2002. Property taxes on
undeveloped land were lower in 2000 due to the reversal of
estimated amounts accrued for anticipated reassessments of
the Company’s North Point and Wildwood land holdings.
The final reassessments, after appeal, were lower than the
anticipated reassessment, and the accrual was reduced.

Other Expenses. Other expenses increased from
$4,086,000 in 2000 to $4,324,000 and $4,857,000 in 2001
and 2002, respectively. The increase in 2002 was partially
due to an increase of approximately $793,000 in predevel-
opment expense. Additionally, minority interest expense
increased approximately $795,000 from 55 Second Street,
which became partially operational for financial reporting
purposes in February 2002. Partially offsetting these
increases in other expenses was the reversal of approxi-
mately $1,156,000 of previously recognized minority
interest expense at 101 Second Street due to the afore-
mentioned early termination of certain tenants’ leases.
The increase in 2001 was due to minority interest expense

of approximately $1,156,000 from 101 Second Street,
which became partially operational for financial reporting
purposes in April 2000.

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes From Operations.

The benefit for income taxes from operations decreased
from $1,145,000 in 2000 to $691,000 in 2001 to a provision
of $1,526,000 in 2002. The increase in the tax provision in
2002 was primarily due to an increase in income before
income taxes and gain on sale of investment properties
from CREC and its subsidiaries. The increase at CREC
and its subsidiaries was primarily due to the October 2002
sale of Salem Road Station and two of its outparcels, as well
as increases in income from residential lot sales, net of cost
of sales, and a decrease in general and administrative
expenses. The increase at CREC and its subsidiaries was
partially offset by a decrease in development income and an
increase in interest expense. The increase in the provision
for income taxes in 2002 was also due to a decrease in the
loss before income taxes and gain on sale of investment
properties from CREC II and its subsidiaries. This decrease
was mainly due to increased income from CPS.

The decrease in the benefit in 2001 was primarily due to a
decrease in the loss before income taxes and gain on sale of
investment properties of approximately $1,953,000 from
CREC and its subsidiaries in 2001. This decrease was pri-
marily due to an increase in income from Temco
Associates, an increase in income from Salem Road
Station, a decrease in interest expense and a decrease in
stock appreciation right expense. The decrease in the loss
before income taxes and gain on sale of investment prop-
erties was partially offset by a decrease in residential lot
sales, net of cost of sales, and an increase in general and
administrative expenses in 2001.

The decrease in benefit for income taxes from operations
in 2001 was partially offset by a decrease in income before
income taxes and gain on sale of investment properties to
a loss from CREC II and its subsidiaries in 2001. The
decrease is primarily due to an increase in interest expense
and a decrease in income from CPS.Additionally, true-ups
in the accruals required for income taxes related to the
1999 tax returns were made for CREC and its subsidiaries
and CREC II and its subsidiaries, which increased
the 2000 benefit by approximately $548,000 and
$208,000 respectively.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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Gain on Sale of Investment Properties. Gain on sale of
investment properties, net of applicable income tax provi-
sion, was $11,937,000, $23,496,000 and $6,254,000 in
2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. The 2002 gain included
the following: the December 2002 sale of 5.5 acres of
Wildwood land ($2.1 million) and the amortization of net
deferred gain from the Prudential transaction ($4.1 million)
(see Note 5).

The 2001 gain included the following: the February 2001
sale of Colonial Plaza MarketCenter ($17.1 million), the
February 2001 disposition of leasehold interests at Summit
Green ($0.2 million), the December 2001 sale of 7 acres of
Wildwood land ($2.0 million) and the amortization of net
deferred gain from the Prudential transaction ($4.2 million)
(see Note 5).

The 2000 gain included the following: the March 2000 sale
of Laguna Niguel Promenade ($7.2 million), the April 2000
sale of 2 acres of North Point land ($0.6 million) and the
amortization of net deferred gain from the Prudential
transaction ($4.1 million) (see Note 5).

Discontinued Operations. The operations and sale of Salem
Road Station were reclassified to discontinued operations
in accordance with SFAS No. 144 (see Note 1, Recent
Accounting Pronouncements).

Extraordinary Loss. The Company recognized an extraor-
dinary loss of approximately $3,501,000 in 2002 due to the

refinancing of the CSC Associates, L.P. non-recourse mort-
gage note payable (see Note 4).

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle. The
Company’s early adoption of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting
for Derivatives,” on October 1, 2000 resulted in a reduc-
tion in net income of approximately $566,000, which was
recorded as a cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Income. The Company owns 248,441 warrants to purchase
common stock of Cypress Communications, Inc. which
were previously recorded as an asset with an estimated
value of approximately $566,000. SFAS No. 133 only
affects the Company as it relates to its ownership of war-
rants to purchase common stock in other companies,
which under SFAS No. 133 are considered derivatives and
must be marked-to-market each period.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Financial Condition. The Company’s adjusted debt (including
its pro rata share of unconsolidated joint venture debt) was
$844.9 million, or 41% of total market capitalization at
December 31, 2002. Adjusted debt is defined as the
Company’s debt ($669.8 million) and the Company’s pro
rata share of unconsolidated joint venture debt ($175.l mil-
lion) as disclosed in Note 4, excluding the Charlotte
Gateway Village, LLC debt ($90.7 million) as it is fully
exculpated and fully amortizing debt which is supported
by a long-term lease to Bank of America Corporation.

As of December 31,2002, the Company was subject to the following contractual obligations and commitments ($ in thousands):

Less Than 1–3 4–5 After
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

Contractual Obligations:
Long-term debt (Note 4):

Unsecured credit facility $ 159,157 $ – $ 159,157 $ – $ –
Mortgage debt 510,635 8,274 46,745 56,973 398,643 
Share of mortgage debt of

unconsolidated joint ventures 265,854 10,318 60,103 50,291 145,142 
Operating leases (ground leases) 45,866 689 1,399 1,430 42,348 
Operating leases (offices) 1,213 1,162 45 6 – 

Total Contractual Obligations $ 982,725 $ 20,443 $ 267,449 $ 108,700 $ 586,133 

Commitments:
Letters of credit $ 4,657 $ 4,657 $ – $ – $ –
Performance bonds 555 111 444 – –
Estimated development commitments (1) 131,501 131,501 – – –

Total Commitments $ 136,713 $ 136,269 $ 444 $ – $ –

(1) Includes the Company’s share of unconsolidated joint venture commitments.
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At December 31, 2002, the Company had $159.2 million
drawn on its $275 million credit facility. This unsecured
credit facility contains customary conditions precedent to
borrowing, including compliance with financial covenants
such as minimum interest coverage and maximum debt to
market capitalization. The interest rate on this facility is
equal to LIBOR plus a spread based on the ratio of total
debt to total assets. As of December 31, 2002, the spread
over LIBOR was 1.15%. This facility also contains custom-
ary events of default that could give rise to acceleration and
include such items as failure to pay interest or principal and
breaches of financial covenants such as maintenance of min-
imum capitalization and minimum interest coverage.

The Company’s mortgage debt, and its share of mortgage
debt of unconsolidated joint ventures, is primarily non-
recourse fixed-rate debt secured by various real estate or
joint venture investments. As of December 31, 2002, the
weighted average interest rate on this debt was 7.5%. In
addition, many of the Company’s non-recourse mortgages
contain covenants which, if not satisfied, could result in
acceleration of the maturity of the debt.

The Company has future lease commitments under land
leases aggregating approximately $45.9 million over an aver-
age remaining term of 57 years.Additionally, the Company
has future lease commitments for office space aggregating
approximately $1.2 million over an average remaining term
of 1.5 years.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company had outstanding
letters of credit and performance bonds aggregating
approximately $5.2 million. These instruments primarily
relate to guarantees of maintenance and/or performance
pertaining to the Company’s development projects.

The Company has development and acquisition projects in
various planning stages. The Company currently intends to
finance these projects and projects currently under con-
struction discussed in Note 8, by using its existing credit
facility (increasing the credit facility as required), long-term
non-recourse financing on the Company’s unleveraged
projects, joint ventures, project sales and other financings as
market conditions warrant.As of December 31, 2002, out-
standing commitments for the construction and design of
real estate projects, including the Company’s share of
unconsolidated joint venture commitments, totaled
approximately $131.5 million, most of which will be fund-
ed in 2003.

As a member of various of the unconsolidated joint ven-
tures described in Note 5, the Company may be required
to make additional capital contributions from time to time
to fund development costs, tenant improvement costs or
operating deficits.

In September 1996, the Company filed a shelf registration
statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) for the offering from time to time of up to
$200 million of common stock, warrants to purchase com-
mon stock and debt securities, of which approximately
$132 million remained available at December 31, 2002.

The Company from time to time evaluates opportunities
and strategic alternatives, including but not limited to joint
ventures, mergers and acquisitions and new private or
publicly-owned entities created to hold existing assets and
acquire new assets. These alternatives may also include sales
of single or multiple assets when the Company perceives
opportunities to capture value and redeploy proceeds or
distribute proceeds to stockholders. The Company’s
consideration of these alternatives is part of its ongoing
strategic planning process. There can be no assurance that
any such alternative, if undertaken and consummated,
would not materially adversely affect the Company or the
market price of the Company’s Common Stock.

Cash Flows. Net cash provided by operating activities of
continuing operations decreased from $90.4 million in
2000 to $90.2 million in 2001 and then increased to
$102.7 million in 2002. Depreciation and amortization
increased approximately $9.9 million due to the aforemen-
tioned office buildings and retail center becoming partially
operational for financial reporting purposes and the write-
offs of unamortized tenant improvements and leasing
commissions related to certain tenants who effected early
terminations of their lease obligations. Changes in other
operating assets and liabilities increased approximately $4.0
million and residential lot and outparcel cost of sales
increased approximately $1.3 million, also contributing to
the increase in net cash provided by operating activities.
Income from continuing operations before gain on sale of
investment properties decreased approximately $3.4 mil-
lion, which partially offset the increase in net cash provided
by operating activities.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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In 2001, income from continuing operations before gain
on sale of investment properties decreased approximately
$3.5 million. Further contributing to the decrease in net
cash provided by operating activities was a decrease in
residential lot and outparcel cost of sales of approximately
$6.1 million. Changes in other operating assets and liabilities
decreased approximately $3.0 million. Stock appreciation
right expense (credit) decreased approximately $0.7 million
in 2001, which also contributed to the decrease in net cash
provided by operating activities. Depreciation and amortiza-
tion increased approximately $12.9 million and amortization
of unearned compensation increased approximately $1.0
million, both of which partially offset the decrease in net
cash provided by operating activities.

Net cash used in investing activities decreased from
$217.8 million in 2000 to $117.3 million in 2001 and $83.0
million in 2002. The decrease in net cash used in investing
activities in 2002 was primarily due to a decrease of
approximately $52.4 million in property acquisition and
development expenditures, as a result of the Company having
a lower level of projects under development in 2002.
Investment in unconsolidated joint ventures decreased
approximately $34.5 million, which also contributed to the
decrease in net cash used in investing activities. This
decrease was primarily due to a decrease in contributions of
approximately $15.4 million to CPI/FSP I, L.P., as con-
struction of Austin Research Park-Buildings III and IV was
completed in 2001, a decrease in contributions of approx-
imately $13.0 million to Crawford Long – CPI, LLC in
2002, as construction of the Emory Crawford Long
Medical Office Tower was substantially completed in
February 2002, and a decrease in contributions of approx-
imately $1.1 million to 285 Venture, LLC, as construction
of 1155 Perimeter Center West was completed in 2001.
Contributions to Gateway also decreased approximately
$7.8 million. The decrease in investment in unconsolidated
joint ventures was partially offset by an increase in contri-
butions of approximately $4.0 million to Ten Peachtree
Place Associates in 2002. The decrease in net cash paid in
acquisition of business of approximately $2.1 million,
which resulted from the acquisition of the remaining 25%
interest in CPS in the first quarter of 2001, and a decrease
in change in other assets, net, of approximately $6.8 mil-
lion, both further contributed to the decrease in net cash
used in investing activities. Net cash provided by sales 

activities decreased approximately $45.9 million due pri-
marily to the sale of Colonial Plaza MarketCenter in
February 2001, which partially offset the decrease in net
cash used in investing activities.Collection of notes receivable
decreased approximately $2.9 million, which also partially
offset the decrease in net cash used in investing activities.
Further offsetting the decrease in net cash used in investing
activities in 2002 was a decrease in distributions in excess
of income from unconsolidated joint ventures of approxi-
mately $12.7 million, consisting of a decrease in total
distributions of approximately $8.9 million and an increase
in income of approximately $3.8 million. The decrease in
total distributions was primarily due to a decrease of
approximately $17.6 million from Gateway as a result of
refinancing Gateway’s construction loan in 2001, partially
offset by increases in total distributions of approximately
$7.0 million from Wildwood Associates and $1.9 million
from CPI/FSP I, L.P.

In 2001, net cash provided by sales activities increased
approximately $30.1 million, which contributed to the
decrease in net cash used in investing activities, due prima-
rily to the sale of Colonial Plaza MarketCenter in February
2001. The decrease in net cash used in investing activities
was also partially due to a decrease of approximately
$75.6 million in property acquisition and development
expenditures, as a result of the Company having a lower
level of projects under development. Also contributing to
the decrease in net cash used in investing activities in 2001
was an increase in distributions in excess of income from
unconsolidated joint ventures of approximately $9.0 mil-
lion, reflecting an increase of approximately $12.4 million
in total distributions net of an increase of approximately
$3.4 million in income. The increase in total distributions
was primarily due to increases of approximately $18.3
million from Gateway, resulting from refinancing its con-
struction loan, $1.9 million from CSC Associates, L.P. and
$0.8 million from CPI/FSP I, L.P. Partially offsetting these
increases in total distributions were decreases in distribu-
tions of approximately $4.5 million from Wildwood
Associates, $3.1 million from CPS and $1.8 million from
Temco Associates. Partially offsetting the decrease in net
cash used in investing activities was an increase of approxi-
mately $7.2 million in investment in unconsolidated joint
ventures in 2001. Investment in Crawford Long – CPI,LLC
increased approximately $13.7 million as a result of develop-
ment of the Emory Crawford Long joint venture medical
office tower and investment in CPI/FSP I, L.P. increased
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approximately $5.0 million as a result of development of
Austin Research Park – Buildings III and IV. Investment in
Gateway also increased approximately $7.8 million.
Partially offsetting the increase in investment in unconsol-
idated joint ventures was a decrease in 285 Venture, LLC of
approximately $12.8 million, as construction of 1155
Perimeter Center West was completed.Also partially offset-
ting the increase was a decrease in the investment in CPS
of approximately $4.5 million, as the Company purchased
the remaining 25% interest in March 2001 (see Note 5).
Change in other assets, net, increased approximately $4.8
million, which partially offset the aforementioned decrease
in net cash used in investing activities. Net cash paid in
acquisition of a business, which resulted from the acquisition
of the remaining 25% interest in CPS, further offset the
decrease in net cash used in investing activities by approxi-
mately $2.1 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities decreased from
$127.5 million in 2000 to $35.5 million in 2001, and then
decreased to net cash used in financing activities of $21.2
million in 2002. The decrease in net cash provided by
financing activities in 2002 was primarily attributable to an
increase of approximately $67.8 million in repayment
of other notes payable and an increase in extraordinary loss
of approximately $3.5 million, both due to the refinancing
of Bank of America Plaza (see Note 4). Also contributing
to the decrease in net cash provided by financing activities
to net cash used in financing activities was an increase of
$29.4 million of common stock repurchases.An increase in
the dividends paid per share to $1.48 in 2002 from $1.39
in 2001 also contributed to the decrease in net cash pro-
vided by financing activities as dividends paid increased
approximately $4.8 million. Additionally, common stock
sold, net of expenses, decreased by approximately $3.4 mil-
lion. The increase in proceeds from other notes payable of
approximately $26.3 million due to the aforementioned
refinancing of Bank of America Plaza and an increase of
approximately $25.8 million in net amounts drawn on the
credit facility partially offset the decrease in net cash pro-
vided by financing activities.

The decrease in net cash provided by financing activities in
2001 was primarily attributable to an increase in net
amounts drawn on the credit facility of $64.1 million and
a decrease of $28.0 million in proceeds from other notes
payable. The Company completed five financings for a
total of $126.5 million in 2001 as compared to three
financings for a total of $154.5 million in 2000. An increase
in the dividends paid per share to $1.39 in 2001 from
$1.24 in 2000 and an increase in the number of shares
outstanding also contributed to the decrease in net cash
provided by financing activities, as dividends paid increased
approximately $8.3 million. The Company repurchased
527,400 shares of its outstanding common stock in
September 2001, which contributed approximately $12.5
million to the decrease in net cash provided by financing
activities. Common stock sold, net of expenses, increased by
approximately $1.4 million and repayment of other notes
payable decreased by approximately $19.5 million, due to
the repayment in 2000 of the note payable to First Union
National Bank, both of which partially offset the decrease
in net cash provided by financing activities.

Effects of Inflation. The Company attempts to minimize
the effects of inflation on income from operating properties
by using rents tied to tenants’ sales, periodic fixed-rent
increases or increases based on cost-of-living adjustments,
and/or pass-through of operating cost increases to tenants.

Other Matters. The events of September 11, 2001 adversely
affected the pricing and availability of property insurance.
In particular, premiums increased and terrorism insurance
coverage became harder to obtain. The availability of
coverage has improved and, at this time, the Company and
its unconsolidated joint ventures are fully insured on all of
their assets. While the Company’s cost of property insur-
ance coverage has increased, management believes the costs
are still reasonable and should not have a material impact on
the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk

The variable rate debt is primarily from the Company’s credit facility, which is drawn on as needed (see Note 4), and
from a mortgage note at an unconsolidated joint venture, Ten Peachtree Place Associates. Since these rates are floating,
the Company is exposed to the impact of interest rate changes. None of the Company’s notes receivable have variable
interest rates. The Company does not enter into contracts for trading purposes and does not use leveraged instruments.
The following table summarizes the Company’s market risk associated with notes payable and notes receivable as of
December 31, 2002. The information presented below should be read in conjunction with Notes 3 and 4. The table pres-
ents principal cash flows and related weighted average interest rates by expected year of maturity. Variable rate represents
the floating interest rate calculated at December 31, 2002.

Expected Year of Maturity

Fair
($ in thousands) 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter Total Value

Notes Payable (including 
share of unconsolidated 
joint ventures):
Fixed Rate $ 17,492 $ 18,716 $ 84,875 $ 18,629 $ 86,308 $ 542,767 $ 768,787 $ 821,866
Average Interest Rate 7.29% 7.24% 7.58% 6.94% 8.00% 7.34% 7.42% –
Variable Rate $ 1,100 $ 161,297 $ 1,117 $ 1,148 $ 1,179 $ 1,018 $ 166,859 $ 166,859
Average Interest Rate 2.13% 2.83% 2.13% 2.13% 2.13% 2.13% 2.81% –

Notes Receivable:
Fixed Rate $ 26,309 $ – $ – $ 12 $ – $ – $ 26,321 $ 27,154
Average Interest Rate 10.00% – – 8.50% – – 10.00% –
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The high and low sales prices for the Company’s common stock and cash dividends declared per share were as follows:

2002 Quarters 2001 Quarters

First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth

High $ 27.18 $ 27.32 $ 25.02 $ 24.89 $ 28.75 $ 27.65 $ 27.07 $ 25.38
Low 23.70 24.20 20.05 20.23 23.50 24.85 23.30 23.70
Dividends Declared .37 .37 .37 .37 .34 .34 .34 .37
Payment Date 2/22/02 5/30/02 8/26/02 12/20/02 2/22/01 5/30/01 8/24/01 12/22/01

The Company’s stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange (ticker symbol CUZ). At February 27, 2003, there were
1,137 stockholders of record.

Timing of Dividends – Cousins normally pays regular
dividends four times each year in February, May, August
and December.

Differences Between Net Income and Cash Dividends

Declared – Cousins’ current intention is to distribute at
least 100% of its taxable income and thus incur no corpo-
rate income taxes. However, Consolidated Net Income for
financial reporting purposes and Cash Dividends Declared
will generally not be equal for the following reasons:

a. There will continue to be considerable differences
between Consolidated Net Income as reported to stock-
holders (which includes the income of consolidated
non-REIT entities that pay corporate income taxes) and
Cousins’ taxable income. The differences are enumerated
in Note 7 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.”

b. For purposes of meeting REIT distribution require-
ments, dividends may be applied to the calendar year
before or after the one in which they are declared. The
differences between dividends declared in the current
year and dividends applied to meet current year REIT
distribution requirements are enumerated in Note 6 of
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Capital Gains Dividends – In some years, as it did in 2002,
2001 and 2000, Cousins will have taxable capital gains, and
Cousins currently intends to distribute 100% of such gains
to stockholders. The Form 1099-DIV sent by Cousins to

stockholders of record each January shows total dividends
paid (including the capital gains dividends) as well as that
which should be reported as a capital gain (see Note 6 of
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements”).

Tax Preference Items and “Differently Treated Items” –
Internal Revenue Code Section 59(d) requires that certain
corporate tax preference items and “differently treated
items” be passed through to a REIT’s stockholders and
treated as tax preference items and items of adjustment in
determining the stockholder’s alternative minimum taxable
income. The amount of this adjustment is included in
Note 6 of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Tax preference items and adjustments are includable in a
stockholder’s income only for purposes of computing the
alternative minimum tax. These adjustments will not affect
a stockholder’s tax filing unless that stockholder’s alternative
minimum tax is higher than that stockholder’s regular tax.
Stockholders should consult their tax advisors to determine
if the adjustment reported by Cousins affects their tax filing.
Many stockholders will find that the adjustment reported
by Cousins will have no effect on their tax filing unless they
have other large sources of alternative minimum tax adjust-
ments or tax preference items.

MARKET AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION

ABOUT YOUR DIVIDENDS
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Selected Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

Selected quarterly information for the two years ended December 31, 2002 ($ in thousands, except per share amounts):

Quarters

First Second Third Fourth

2002:
Revenues $ 49,077 $ 48,814 $ 52,357 $ 49,552
Income from unconsolidated joint ventures 7,030 6,601 6,880 6,159
Gain on sale of investment properties, net of applicable income 

tax provision 1,029 1,042 1,028 3,155
Income from continuing operations 12,716 12,656 11,929 12,671
Discontinued operations 59 56 81 1,205
Extraordinary loss (3,501) – – –
Net income 9,274 12,712 12,010 13,876
Basic income from continuing operations per share .26 .25 .24 .26
Basic net income per share .19 .26 .24 .29
Diluted income from continuing operations per share .25 .25 .24 .26
Diluted net income per share .18 .25 .24 .28

2001:
Revenues $ 43,172 $ 44,089 $ 45,180 $ 44,545
Income from unconsolidated joint ventures 5,505 5,640 5,804 5,948
Gain on sale of investment properties, net of applicable income 

tax provision 18,345 1,077 1,031 3,043
Income from continuing operations 31,308 12,500 13,324 13,462
Discontinued operations 59 58 63 41
Net income 31,367 12,558 13,387 13,503
Basic income from continuing operations per share .64 .25 .27 .27
Basic net income per share .64 .25 .27 .28
Diluted income from continuing operations per share .62 .25 .26 .27
Diluted net income per share .62 .25 .27 .27

Independent Auditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Counsel

King & Spalding LLP
Troutman Sanders LLP

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Wachovia Bank, N.A.
Shareholder Services Group – 1153
1525 West W.T. Harris Blvd., Building 3C3
Charlotte, North Carolina 28262-1153
Telephone Number: 1-800-829-8432
Fax Number: 704-590-7618

Form 10-K Available

The Company’s annual report on Form 10-K and interim
reports on Form 10-Q are filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission.Copies without exhibits are available
free of charge upon written request to the Company at
2500 Windy Ridge Parkway, Suite 1600,Atlanta, Georgia
30339-5683, Attention: Mark A. Russell, Vice President,
Chief Financial Analyst and Director of Investor
Relations. These items are also posted on the Company’s
website at www.cousinsproperties.com.

Investor Relations Contact

Mark A. Russell, Vice President, Chief Financial Analyst
and Director of Investor Relations
Telephone Number: 770-857-2449
Fax Number: 770-857-2360
Email Address: markrussell@cousinsproperties.com



60
Cousins Properties Incorporated and Consolidated Entities

Directors

T. G. Cousins
Chairman of the Board 

Thomas D. Bell, Jr.
Vice Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer

Richard W. Courts, II
Chairman
Atlantic Investment Company

Lillian C. Giornelli 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
The Cousins Foundation, Inc.

Terence C. Golden
Chairman
Bailey Capital Corporation

Boone A. Knox
Chairman
Regions Bank of Central Georgia

John J. Mack
Co-Chief Executive Officer of Credit Suisse
Group and Chief Executive Officer
Credit Suisse First Boston

Hugh L. McColl, Jr.
Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Bank of America Corporation

William Porter Payne
Partner
Gleacher & Co.

R. Dary Stone
Vice Chairman of the Company

Henry C. Goodrich
Director Emeritus

Corporate

T. G. Cousins
Chairman of the Board 

Thomas D. Bell, Jr.
Vice Chairman of the Board, President 
and Chief Executive Officer

Daniel M. DuPree
Vice Chairman of the Company

R. Dary Stone
Vice Chairman of the Company

Tom G. Charlesworth
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Chief Investment Officer

Dan G.Arnold
Senior Vice President and Chief 
Information Officer

Lisa M. Borders
Senior Vice President

James A. Fleming
Senior Vice President, General Counsel 
and Secretary

Lawrence B. Gardner
Senior Vice President – Human Resources

C. Jack Minter
Senior Vice President – Director of Investments

Michael A. Quinlan
Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer,
Controller and Assistant Secretary

Patricia A. Grimes
Vice President – Financial and SEC Reporting
and Accounting Policy

Karen S. Hughes
Vice President – Treasury and Finance

Kristin R. Myers
Vice President – Taxation and Benefit Plan
Compliance

Mark A. Russell
Vice President – Chief Financial
Analyst and Director of Investor Relations

Office Division

Craig B. Jones
President 

John S. McColl
Senior Vice President 

Michael B.Ablon
Senior Vice President – Dallas

W. Henry Atkins
Senior Vice President – Charlotte

Charles E. Cotten
Senior Vice President – Dallas

Mark P. Dickenson
Senior Vice President – Director 
of Leasing, Client Services, Dallas

Walter L. Fish
Senior Vice President – Director 
of Leasing,Atlanta

James F. George 
Senior Vice President – Senior 
Development Executive

Tim Hendricks
Senior Vice President – Austin

Jack A. LaHue
Senior Vice President – Asset Management

Tad Leithead, Jr.
Senior Vice President – Office,Atlanta

Dara J. Nicholson
Senior Vice President – Property 
Management, Office 

C. David Atkins
Vice President – Asset Management, Charlotte

James D. Dean 
Vice President – Senior Development
Executive, Office

Lee Eastwood
Vice President – Leasing, Office

Molly Faircloth
Vice President – Administration, Office

John N. Goff
Vice President – Development Executive,
Charlotte

Charles D. McCormick
Vice President – Development Executive, Austin

Ronald C. Sturgis
Vice President – Director of Operations, Office

Lloyd P. Thompson, Jr.
Vice President – Senior Development Executive

John R. Ward
Vice President – Asset Management,Atlanta

Retail Division

Joel T. Murphy
President

William I. Bassett
Senior Vice President – Development

Alexander A. Chambers
Senior Vice President 

Robert A. Manarino
Senior Vice President – Director 
of Western Region Operations

Thomas D. Lenny
Senior Vice President – Western Region

David C. Nelson
Senior Vice President – Director 
of Asset Management

Steve V. Yenser
Senior Vice President – Leasing

Steve A. Cooper
Vice President – Property Management

Kevin B. Polston
Vice President – Leasing

Amy S. Siegal
Vice President – Leasing 

Land Division*
(Cousins Neighborhoods)

Bruce E. Smith
President

Michael J. Quinley 
Senior Vice President – Development

Erling D. Speer
Senior Vice President – Development

Craig A. Lacey
Vice President – Development

Deloris Schmidt
Vice President – Operations

*Officers of Cousins Real Estate
Corporation only

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS



1 An Uncommon View 10 Letter to Shareholders 12 A View from Tom Bell 14 An Overview of Cousins Properties 16 A View of our Returns 17 Financials 
47 Management’s Discussion and Analysis 58 Market and Dividend Information 60 Directors and Officers 

CORPORATE PROFILE

Cousins Properties Incorporated (NYSE:CUZ) is one of the foremost

diversified real estate development companies in the United States. The

Company creates shareholder value through the development and

operation of high-quality real estate.With headquarters in Atlanta,Cousins

is a fully integrated, self-administered equity real estate investment trust

(REIT) which actively invests in office, retail, medical office and land.

Cousins has been in the real estate business for more than 40 years and

has proven experience in the development, leasing, management,

acquisition and financing of properties. At December 31, 2002, the

Company’s portfolio consisted of interests in more than 14.2 million

square feet of office and medical space,3.3 million square feet of retail space,

and more than 300 acres of strategically located land for future

commercial development. Cousins became a public company in 1962,

elected REIT status in 1987 and was listed on the New York Stock

Exchange in 1992.

THE AVENUE® EAST COBB, Atlanta, GA – Cousins unveiled the Avenue retail concept – open-air, pedestrian-friendly centers with restaurants and
traditionally mall-based retailers – with the opening of this project in 1999.
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